TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
STAFF REPORT
December 6, 2012

For the Meeting of December 11, 2012
TO:

Town Council

FROM:

Daria Carrillo, Finance & Admin Services Director

SUBJECT:

Annual Independent Audit Report for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2012

RECOMMENDATION
That Council accept the following reports prepared by Moss. Levy & Hartzheim LLP, which
comprise the Annual Independent Audit Report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012:
/

•
•
•

Audited Basic Financial Statements and Required and Other Supplementary
Information With Independent Auditor's Report;
Agreed Upon Procedures (Gann Limit Compliance);
Fiscal 2012 Report to Town Council (Management Letter).

BACKGROUND
Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP, Certified Public Accountants, have prepared the annual
independent auditor's report and basic financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30,
2012. Based on their examination of Town records and procedures, they have presented their
findings in a Management Letter. In addition, as required by law they have tested and reported on
compliance in the Gann Limit calculations.
This is the first year of the Town's contract with Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP to conduct the
audit of the financial statements for the Town. Copies of the documents are included in the Town
Council packet. They are also included as part of the agenda packet available for public viewing
on the Town's website. Derek Rampone, Audit Manager with Moss, Levy & Hartzheim LLP will
present the report to the Town Council on December 11, 2012. Following action by the Council,
the document will be available for public viewing in the Finance Department for a period of 30
days and be posted on the Town's website.

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The basic financial statements include balance sheets and revenue and expenditure reports for
each of the Town's funds, and notes on a number of items designated by the auditor. This section
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also includes government-wide financial statements as required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement #34. This information regarding the Town's financial
position include such items as valuation of the Town's fixed assets, capitalization and
depreciation of those assets, indebtedness related to those assets, and information on the debt
service and employee benefit accruals.
At the highest summary level, the government-wide statements show that the Town's assets total
$29,347,124 and liabilities total $16,298,153. Net assets, calculated as the difference between
assets and liabilities, total $13,048,971. This represents a net increase from the prior fiscal year of
$133,199 .
. With respect to the fund balances, GASB 54 has changed the reporting requirements regarding the
presentation of the funds. The General Fund as presented in the audit report includes the General
Fund, Measure G Bonds Proceeds, Emergency Reserve Fund and Downtown Revitalization Fund.
The Town, unless directed otherwise by Town Council, will continue to keep each of these funds
separate for its own internal records.
Please note that the Municipal Lease Fund has been eliminated. The liability for the municipal
lease is reflected in the government wide balance sheet (statement of net assets).
The General Fund's ending fund balance as of June 30,2012 was $1,821,878. This includes the
Measure G Bond Proceeds, Emergency Fund Reserve and Downtown Revitalization Fund as
noted above. In terms of the funds as shown on the Town's books, the General Fund's ending
balance was $1,570,660, the Measure G Bond Proceeds Fund's ending balance was $13,780, the
Emergency Fund's ending balance was $224,056 and the Downtown Revitalization's ending fund
balance was $13,382.
The Insurance Fund statements include the booking and reporting ofthe long term cost estimate
for all insurance claims against the Town, including both workers compensation as well as general
liability claims. The liability, as estimated by Bay Cities Joint Powers Insurance Authority, is
$427,626 an increase of$11,465 from the previous fiscal year.
The conclusion presented in the independent auditor's report resulting is that the basic financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Town as of June 30,
2012. The results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the fiscal year
are in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. This conclusion is known as a
"clean audit."

AGREED UPON PROCEDURES (GANN LIMIT)

The auditors reviewed the Town's Gann Limit Worksheet for FY 2012-2013 for compliance with the
Agreed-upon Procedures Applied to the Appropriations Limitation Prescribed by Article XIII-B of the
California Constitution. There were no findings regarding this worksheet.
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AUDITOR'S REPORT TO TOWN COUNCIL

The auditor's Report to Town Council contains a series of statements regarding various aspects of
the Town's internal control structure. No material weaknesses were identified in this section. The
auditors noted a deficiency in the lack of segregation of duties over payroll. Staff anticipates that
this deficiency will be cured when the Town implements the payroll module of its financial
software.
This report also notes a correction to a material misstatement in a previous fiscal year. This
concerns the treatment ofthe municipal lease. The Town's previous auditors had instructed that
the lease be recorded in one ofthe Town's funds. The current auditors have eliminated this fund
and recorded the liability on the government wide balance sheet (statement of net assets).
CONCLUSION

The annual audit reports outlined above provide the Council with an overview of the fiscal
condition of the Town as of June 30, 2012. The recommended actions are to accept the auditor's
report.

ResPec~~Oo
Daria Carrillo
Finance and Admin Services Director

Audit documents: Public viewing on website: www.townofsananse1mo.org

Available with public viewing agenda packets
Following Council action, available for viewing in the Finance Department
for 30 days
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Town Council
Town of San Anselmo
San Anselmo, California
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Town of San Anselmo, California, as of and for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Town of San Anselmo's
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America, Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.
The City adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No, 64,
Derivative Investments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions, effective July 1, 2011.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Town of San Anselmo, California, as of June 30, 2012, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the fiscal year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 30,
2012, on our consideration of the Town's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of
our audit.
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 13, the budgetary comparison schedules on pages 56
through 59, and the schedule of funding progress for post-employment benefits other than pensions on
page 55, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town's financial statements as a whole. The combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements and schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements and schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Moss, Levy, & Hartzheim LLP
Culver City, California
November 30,2012
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This discussion and analysis of the Town's financial activities and performance provides an overview for
the fiscal year ended June 30,2012.
Please read this in conjunction with the Town's financial statements, which follow this discussion and
analysis.

Government-Wide Highlights

•

The Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets appearing as the first statement of the Basic
Financial Statements and summarized in Management's Discussion and Analysis, show the Town's
assets to be $29,347,124, liabilities of $16,298,153, and net assets of $13,048,971. In comparing Net
Assets as of June 30,2011 at $12,861,520, a net increase of $187,451 was realized.

•

Total Town revenues were $15,240,865 compared with total expenses of $15,053,414 resulting in an
increase in net assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 of $187,451.

•

The Town's net capital assets, net of related debt, totaled 49,703,286 at June 30, 2012. This amount
results from the Town's decision to exercise the GASB 34 "small entity" option of not valuing
infrastructure (e.g. streets, sewers, sidewalks) acquired prior to June 30, 2003, in accounting for
capital assets. Therefore, in comparing assets to debt on those assets, the Town's net capital assets
are significantly understated in this report. Beginning in fiscal year 2003-04, the Town began to
capitalize the cost of its capital assets on a go-forward basis. As of June 30, 2005 the Town's net
capital assets, net of related debt, remained in the negative: $(315,151). During 2005-06 capitalized
projects increased the Town's net capital assets by $1,701,362 and for the first time achieved positive
net capital assets in the amount of $1,386,211 and have increased in subsequent years and toal
$9,703,286 as of June 30,2012.

•

The Town's long-term debt (including current portion and postemployment benefit obligation) totaled
$14,910,026 as of June 30, 2012, an increase of $5,229,183 from the prior year. This increase
reflects the issuance of pension obligation bonds and a change in the accounting treatment of the
municipal lease. This change was made as advised by the Town's independent auditors.
Fund Highlights

As of the close of fiscal year 2012, the Town's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund
balance of $4,062,307 as compared to $3,100,490 as of June 30, 2011. This increase was due primarily
to the change in accounting treatment of the municipal lease mentioned above. The detailed components
of Revenues and Expenditures can be found in the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances.
Town's Highlights

On December 31, 2005 the Town experienced a devastating flood as the result of unusually heavy winter
rains. The Town's public buildings were not spared. The Police Department, Fire Department, Council
Chambers, public restrooms and the lower floor of the Library were rendered inoperable by the
floodwaters. Recovery from that winter is finally now complete.
In the last several years, the Town's budget has been stabilized at these reduced levels, with minimal
funds allocated to road maintenance, equipment, and capital projects. The budget presented on the
Town's website reflects a status quo budget, with no employee salary increases other than individual step
increases and longevity pay increases, and minimal capital and equipment expenditures.
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Accomplishments for 2011-12
Capital Projects - The Safe Routes to Schools grant project was completed, constructing sidewalks all
the way around Wade Thomas School, installing ADA compliant curb ramps and making improvements at
the Mariposa/Richmond intersection for pedestrian safety. Slurry sealing was accomplished on a number
of our streets, a process that extends the life of streets in good condition. A number of streetlights were
replaced with an energy efficient induction type lighting with grant money from EECBG (Energy Efficiency
and Conservation Block Grant). Staff worked with the County Flood Zone 9 staff to move forward with
planning for the Ross Valley Watershed flood mitigation projects.
Strategic Planning - The Town Council and staff participated in several Strategic Planning Sessions that
culminated in a community Strategic Planning Survey. Over 300 community members took the survey,
allowing us to identify the top ten goals of the community, which include improving road and drainage
maintenance, reducing flood risk, creating a master plan for community facilities, exploring sharing staff
with other jurisdictions, blocking San Anselmo Avenue for events, creating a financial advisory committee,
working to find solutions to safety issues on Sir Francis Drake Blvd., adopting a program for median
upgrades, improving the Isabel Cook Community Center, and increasing code enforcement of run down
vacant buildings and illegal signs. At Council direction, staff is moving forward first on the Financial
Advisory Committee, changes to the Economic Development Subcommittee and improving the utilization
of our community facilities.
Sharing Services- The Police Department has been sharing services with the Twin Cities Police Authority
for the last several years. Shared services to date include joint use of the dispatch communications
center, a shared investigations unit, traffic unit, honor guard, property and evidence storage unit, patrol
services, and command staffing. This service sharing is saving the Town over $600,000 in the 2012-13
budget year. In addition, work is continuing to analyze the annual financial savings if the Town were to
become a member of the Twin Cities Police Authority.
Fire Consolidation - The Ross Valley Fire Department, previously made up of San Anselmo, Fairfax,
and Sleepy Hollow, has expanded to include the Town of Ross, thus improving service to all four
communities and reducing costs.
Library programming- In the first full year of the Library's parcel tax, the programming and activities at
the Library have blossomed. Children'S programs abound, including toddler story times, French story
times, Read to a Dog, Bookworms reading club, Poetry Club, and the very successful Summer Reading
Program. Adult programs have also flourished, including the Book Club, Art Talk Tuesdays, and Saturday
Lectures. The Friends of the Library continue to support the Library with bi-monthly book sales and
generous donations to programs and supplies.
Community Events, Recreation and Volunteers:- The Recreation Department has assumed
responsibility for coordinating events that bring the community and volunteers together, including Country
Fair Day, Picnics on the Plaza, Goblins' Parade, and the spring egg hunts. In addition, the department
encourages and facilitates community events such as Film Night in the Park, Music in the Park, and the
Art & Wine Festival. The summer camp program is thriving with children of all ages enjoying camp at
Memorial Park and other specialty sports and art camps. The Ross Valley Seniors brings seniors together
on a monthly basis to enjoy lunch, games, and lectures. The Parkside Preschool will be open full time
beginning in the fall, giving parents a lower cost alternative. Finally, staff is collaborating with other
jurisdictions for a fall Hooked on Marin speaker series.
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Flood Recovery

The flood has had a major impact on the Town's financial situation. Over $7.6 million in flood recovery has
been spent to date in Town-wide activities. We have received $4.5 million in reimbursement from the
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), the California Emergency Management Agency
(CaIEMA), and the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). To date, $1.7 million has been contributed
to the flood recovery from the General Fund.
Pension Obligation Bonds

The Town issued pension obligation bonds in order to payoff its CalPERS side fund. The side fund was
created in 2003 when CalPERS combined agencies with less than 100 members into risk pools based on
plan type. At that time, the Employer Side Fund was created to account for the difference between the
funded status of the pool and the funded status of individual plans. In the Town's case, the funded status
of the plan was less than that of the pool for both the Safety and Miscellaneous plans. In June 2012, the
Town issued pension obligation bonds, which will result in savings to the Town of more than $600,000
over 10 years.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town's basic financial
statements. The Town's basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This
report also contains required and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves.
Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements consist of a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of
Activities and Changes in Net Assets. These statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the Town's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. They provide
information about the activities of the Town as a whole and present a longer-term view of the Town's
finances.
The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Town's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.
The Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets presents information showing how the Town's net
assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
some of the revenues and expenses reported in this statement may result in cash flows only in future
fiscal periods, such as revenues related to uncollected taxes and interest expense incurred but not paid.
Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other governmental entities, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. Funds of
governmental entities are divided into two categories: governmental funds, and proprietary funds.
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Governmental funds
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on (1) short-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources and (2) the remaining year-end balances available for spending. This information
may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.
Because the focus of governmental fund financial statements is narrower than that of the governmentwide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with
similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to assist the reader with this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.
The Town maintains 19 individual governmental funds. In the governmental funds balance sheet and
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances, information is presented separately
for the following funds considered to be major funds:
..
..
..
..
..

General Fund
Road Maintenance Fund
Measure G 2011 Bond Fund
Recreation Fund
Isabel Cook Complex Fund

General Fund: In accordance with the GASB 54, the General Funds are used to account for
governmental funds that are not classified as Special Revenue, Capital Project or Debt Service funds.
They include the following funds:
..
..
..
..

General Fund
Measure G Bond Proceeds Fund
Emergency Reserve Fund
Downtown Revitalization Fund

Non-major Governmental Funds: Special Revenue. Special revenue funds generally account for
revenues derived from specific sources. These funds are required by statute or ordinance to finance
particular functions or activities of government. They include the following funds:
..
•
•
•
•
•
•

Grant Fund
Gas Tax Fund
Supplemental Law Enforcement fund
Library Services Fund
Robson House Fund
Special Events Fund
P.O.S.T. Fund

Non-major Governmental Funds: Capital Projects. Capital projects funds are used to account for the
acquisition or construction of capital facitlites.
.. Capital Reconstruction. This fund accounts for revenues set aside for capital projects.
• Equipment Replacement Fund. This fund accounts for revenues set aside for equipment
replacement.
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Non-major Governmental Funds: Debt Service. Debt service funds are used to account for financial
resources to be used for principal and interest payments on the Town's Measure G bond debt, and also to
account for resources to be used for the repayment of the municipal lease. They include the following
funds:

•
•

Debt Service, Bond Series 2003
Municipal Lease Fund

Non-major Other Funds: Internal Service. This fund accounts for the premium payments as well as the
self-insured portion of the Town's workers' compensation and liability insurance programs.
Business-type Funds

The Town maintains no business-type funds.
Fiduciary Funds A fiduciary fund is used to account for assets held for the benefit of other individuals or
entities.
• Agency Fund - Snack Shack fund.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements follow the basic
financial statements.
Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information other than this discussion and analysis concerning the Town's
budgetary comparison schedules, other postemployment benefit obligation and PERS schedule of funding
progress.
Other Supplementary Information

This report also presents certain combining statements in connection with non-major governmental funds.
These combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found immediately following the
Required Supplementary Information section.

7

Town of San Anselmo
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2012
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Net Assets

Net assets for the Town are summarized below and an analysis follows:
2012
Governmental
Activities
5,476,149
$
19,561,557
4,309,418

2011
Governmental
Activities
$ 5,427,676
18,868,585
1,060,325

Total assets

29,347,124

25,356,586

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

1,388,127
14,910,026

2,647,498
9,793,316

16,298,153

12,440,814

9,703,286

9,910,335

1,419,245
1,926,440

251,483
2,753,954

13,048,971

$12,915,772

Cash and investments
Capital assets, net
Other assets

Total liabilities
Invested in capital assets,
net
Restricted
Unrestricted
Net assets

$

Net assets of $13,048,971 at June 30,2012 consist primarily of the following elements. There was a prior
period adjustment of $54,252 (see note 15) resulting in the prior year's restated net assets totaling
$12,861,520.
ASSETS:
• Cash and investments of $5,476,149 increased $48,473 compared to the previous year.

•

Net capital assets increased $692,972 due to capital improvements to Town buildings as
well as infrastructure projects.

•

Other assets of $4,309,418, including accounts receivables, prepaid expense and net
deferred charges, increased $3,249,093 over the prior year. This is attributable to the
prepaid pension asset of $3,519,831 which is due to the issuance of pension obligation
bonds. Partially offsetting the prepaid pension asset, in the previous year the Town had
an unusually large amount of prepaid expenses due to a change in financial software.

LIABILITIES:
•
Current liabilities of $1,388,127 decreased a net amount of $1,259,371 This change is
largely due to the way in which the liability for the municipal lease had been accounted for.

•

Non-current Liabilities of $14,910,026 including the non-current portion of insurance claim
liabilities, the non-current portion of long term debt, and the postemployment benefit
obligation, increased by $5,116,710 due primarily to the issuance of the pension

8

Town of San Anselmo
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2012
obligation bonds and the change in the way the liability for the municipal lease is
recorded.
Changes in Net Assets

Changes in net assets for the Town are summarized below and an analysis follows:
2012

2011

Governmental
Activities

Governmental
Activities

Revenues:

Program Revenues:
Charges for services
$
Operating grants & contributions
Capital grants & contributions
General Revenues:
Property and sales tax
Intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Franchise fees and other taxes
Other
Total revenues

2,122,231
445,080
770,252

$

2,007,586
221,830
687,714

10,862,229
6,305
14,174

9,823,669
481,088
128,072

914,692
105,902
15,240,865

2,093,148
191,838
15,634,945

1,807,840
8,062,328
1,184,001
949,053
852,288
1,774,946
422,958
15,053,414

1,592,312
8,270,247
1,679,270
742,795
756,149
1,801,325
375,671
15,217,769

Expenses:

General government
Public safety
Public works
Planning
Library
Parks and recreation
Interest on long-term debt
Total expenses
Change in net assets

187,451

$

417,176

Net assets increased $187,451 during fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 as compared to $417,176 during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. This does not include the prior period adjustment of $54,252.
Components of the change in net assets include:
..

Charges for Services revenue of $2,122,231, an increase of $114,645, due primarily to an
increase in construction fees collected in the amount of $100,065 .

..

Operating Grants and Contributions revenue of $445,080, an increase of $223,250.
Additional funding was received for public safety and public works.

..

Capital grants and contributions revenue of $770,252, an increase of $82,538 due to
increased grants relating to infrastructure.

..

Decreased total revenue in the amount of $394,080. The following factors contributed to this
decrease: 1) In the previous year the Town received a grant in the amount of $56,617 for
flood mitigation projects assisting local residents in home elevations. The Town did not
receive the grant in 2011-2012, 2) Lease proceeds related to the municipal lease were
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•

recognized in the previous year in the amount of $88,386. As the Town has changed the
method of accounting for the lease, this revenue is not recognized in 2011-2012, 3) In the
previous year the Town received a one time refund of $36,000 related to flood control, 4) In
2011-2012 the Town did not receive Motor Vehicle License fees, resulting in decreased
revenue of $51,787 and 5) in the previous year the Town received $228,035 in one time
federal stimulus revenue.
Decreased total expenses of $164,355 mostly due to fewer expenditures for public works
projects as compared to the previous year.

Analysis of Major Governmental Funds
General Fund

General fund revenue and transfers in for 2011-2012 exceeded the budget by $142,532, due mainly to
increased revenue in the areas of sales tax, construction permits, and planning related fees.
Due to the issuance of the pension obligation bonds and the payoff of the Cal PERS side fund, general fund
expenditures for 2011-2012 exceeded the budget by $3,893,600 as this transaction was not included in the
budget. There is an offsetting entry, proceeds from issuance of debt, in the amount of $3,583,000 which
mitigates most of this variance. Of the remaining variance, legal expenditures exceeded the budget by
$167,108 due to a contract dispute related to construction. Additionally, salaries exceeded the budget by
$179,949. This occurred because of severance pay and leave buyout payments due to employees who
retired in 2011-2012.
In summary, the net impact of revenue and expenditure levels for fiscal year 2011-12 resulted in a
decrease in the ending fund balance of $238,539. This includes a prior period adjustment of $70,471.
These totals include the general fund, Measure G bond proceeds, emergency fund and Downtown
Revitalization. Including only the general fund, the ending fund balance decreased by $247,699 and as of
June 30,2012, the fund balance was $1,570,660.
Road Maintenance Fund

The Road Maintenance Fund received revenue from three major sources. First, Road Impact Fees for
construction projects and refuse vehicles, totaling $177,314 is revenue legally restricted for use in road
improvement projects. Second, this fund received $482 in interest earnings from idle Measure G bond
funds invested in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). These funds are reserved by Town Council
policy for use in slurry seal street repairs. Finally, a General Fund contribution of $400,000 was
transferred to this fund to support infrastructure maintenance per Town policy.
The Road Maintenance fund balance as of June 30,2012 totaled $1,033,657.
Recreation Fund

During 2011-2012 program fees were collected in the amount of $965,911. Expenditures for the period
totaled $966,153. The ending fund balance as of June 30, 2012 was a negative balance of ($5,190).
Isabel Cook Complex Fund

The Isabel Cook Complex fund had a negative beginning balance of ($97,829).
Expenditures exceeded revenues in 2011-2012 by $30,202, bringing the ending fund balance to negative
($128,031). This fund receives its revenues through rental income. The negative ending fund balance is a
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result of periods of vacant spaces not being rented and of capital improvements made in order to allow
space to be rented.
Measure G Bond funds

The 2011 Measure G 2011 Bond Fund consists of the Measure G 1995, 1997 and 2000 bonds which were
refinanced in 2011. The ending fund balance in this fund as of June 30, 20112 was $595,088. These
funds are collected by the Marin County Tax Collector and can only be used to repay the principal and
interest on the 2011 Measure G bonds.
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets:
The Town's investment in capital assets as of June 30,2012 was $19,561,557, net of depreciation, an
increase of $513,794 as compared with the previous year. The increase was primarily due to public works
projects, which included constructing sidewalks around Wade Thomas School, installing ADA compliant
curb ramps, slurry sealing on various streets, and the installation of energy efficient street lighting.
Long Term Debt:
AS of June 30, 2012, The Town had $13,610,019 outstanding in long term debt for governmental
activities. This is an increase of $4,940,348 as compared to the previous year. This increase is due to the
issuance of pension obligation bonds in the amount of $3,583,000 and a change in the way that the
municipal lease in the amount of $1,354,011 is recorded. Also included in the Town's long term debt are
general obligation bonds in the amount of $8,210,000, obligations related to Other Post Employment
Benefits in the amount of $508,210, and liability related to compensated absences in the amount of
$418,980.

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

Revenue:
The nationwide reduction in real estate activity continues. As a result, our property tax revenue is
projected to show only a small increase in 2012-13, about 2%. This is significant in that 77% of our
General Fund revenue comes from property tax related revenue.
There are, however, some indicators that real estate activity may be picking up. Revenue from the
property transfer tax is up in the last year, as is revenue from resale inspections, both of which are small
signs of improvement. Revenue from planning application fees and construction permit fees is also up,
indicating additional activity in the construction industry. While these increases are modest, they may be
an indicator that the economy is beginning to show signs of improvement.
Expenditures:
The proposed budget represents the status quo in most Department budgets. After years of making cuts,
department budgets continue at a level that is just adequate to meet minimum service levels.
Employee-related expenses make up approximately 75% of the Town expenditures, including the Fire
Department. In 2011-12 all employee groups agreed to pay 3% of salary toward the employee share of
pension costs, with no accompanying salary increase. No employee salary increases are planned for thie
upcoming fiscal year.
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In 2006, the two bargaining units, SAPOA and SEIU 1021, agreed to a two-tiered retirement plan for
employees hired after February 1, 2007 and all new benefitted employees, including management and
confidential, were affected. In 2012-13, nearly half of the Town's employees are enrolled in the lower cost
second tier pension plan, saving close to $1 million over the 5-year period.
The Town's Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) pension rate has been reduced to reflect the
sale of Pension Obligation Bonds to payoff the Town's Employer Side Fund liability of $3,521,183. This
has resulted in a significant reduction in the PERS rate for the Tier 1 retirement plans.
In 2003, PERS combined agencies with less than 100 members into risk pools based on plan type. The
Employer Side Fund was created to account for the difference between the funded status of the pool and
the funded status of individual plans. The repayment of the Pension Obligation Bonds is reflected in the
Expenditure Summary under General Fund Departments, Debt Service (Pension Obligation Bonds).
Overall, the refinancing of the side fund is saving the Town approximately $60,000 per year.

The Town's experience with the Bay Cities Joint Powers Insurance Authority, our self-insurance pool, has
remained fairly stable. Costs for Workers Compensation claims exceeded anticipated amounts, but costs
for liability claims were lower than anticipated. A fund transfer to the Insurance Fund has been made to
ensure that insurance reserves remain at the level deemed sufficient by the Bay Cities Joint Powers
Insurance Authority to fund fully our outstanding claims going forward.
Grants:
The proposed budget reflects the carryover of a number of grants awarded in earlier years, most of which
are accounted for in the Grant Fund and the majority require no matching funds on the part of the Town.
Grants include:
•
•
•
•
•

Federal Safe Routes to Schools (various neighborhoods) - $620,000
Transportation Authority of Marin Local Streets road rehabilitation (Madrone and Brookside) $190,661
Transportation Authority of Marin Safe Paths to Schools (Greenfield) - $150,000
Transportation Authority of Marin Safe Paths to Schools (Butterfield) - $168,000
California Fish & Game Fish Passage grant (Lansdale) - $567,592

Fiscal Challenges:
The long-term fiscal challenges facing the Town continue to be:
•
•

•

Ensuring sufficient funds to maintain the Town's streets and storm drain infrastructure at current
levels.
Addressing aging infrastructure in Town buildings, parks, and other public facilities and replacing old,
outdated equipment.
Restoring Town services that have been cut, such as in Streets and Parks maintenance.
Relying heavily on a relatively fixed tax base, restricted by a geography offering few development
possibilities for tax revenue expansion.

Capital Project Commitments
The Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) was prepared by staff in 2011 based on the pavement
management program report that outlines the pavement condition index (PCI) of Town streets. It was
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reviewed and recommended to the Town Council by the Capital Program Monitoring Committee this
spring. It was also reviewed by the Planning Commission for compliance with the California
Environmental Quality Act and conformance with the Town's General Plan. The CIP was approved by the
Town Council on June 14, 2011 and year 1 construction is underway and reflected in the Road
Maintenance Fund. Year 2 design and construction is also included in Road Maintenance. The entire
five-year plan is available at http://www.townofsananselmo.org/DocumentView.aspx?DID=577.
The 2012-13 budget also reflects funds for the following capital projects:

•
•
•

Curb ramp and detectable warning projects in conjunction with road and sidewalk work and
stand-alone projects.
Repairs to the Town Hall tower.
Improvements to Memorial Park through Snack Shack funds

The budget includes a $400,000 contribution to the Town's Road Maintenance Fund, reflecting the
Council's commitment to maintain the progress accomplished by the Town's Measure G bond program.

Budget Format

The operations of the Town are budgeted primarily in the Town's General Fund. Significant
maintenance projects and other capital improvements are contained in the Capital Reconstruction
Fund. Road and drainage improvement projects are funded through the Road Maintenance Fund
and grants in the Grant Fund. The Recreation Fund accounts for most ofthe revenue and expenses
related to recreation programs. The Library Tax Fund tracks expenditures related to the special
Library services tax.
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, creditors, and government regulators
with a general overview of the Town's finances and to demonstrate the Town's accountability for the
money it receives. Below is the contact address for questions about this report or requests for additional
financial information.
Finance & Administrative Services Director
Town of San Anselmo
525 San Anselmo Avenue
San Anselmo, CA 94960
(Ph) 415-258-4678
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TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2012

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables:
Accounts and due from other governments
Prepaid pension asset
Prepaid expenses
Unamortized debt issuance costs
Restricted assets:
Cash and investments with fiscal agent
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets
Depreciable assets, net

$

5,476,149
507,603
3,519,831
41,154
226,189
14.641
2,591,850
16,969,707
29,347,124

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Interest payable
Deposits payable
Unearned revenue
Claims payable
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Claims payable due in more than one year

604,367
163.898
383,479
96,741
139,642
1,012,023
13.610,019
287,984
16,298,153

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Downtown Revitalization
Library
Streets and roads
Debt service

9,703,286
13,382
141.116
713,055
551,692
1,926,440

U nrestri cted

$

Total Net Assets

See notes to basic financial statements
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13,048,971

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Functions/Programs
Governmental Activities:
General government
Public Safety
Planning and building
Parks and recreation
Public works
Library
Interest on long-tenn debt
Total Governmental Activities

Expenses

$

$

Charges for
Services

1,807,840
8,062,328
949,053
1.774,946
1.184,001
852,288
422,958

$

15,053,414

$

Pro!;lram Revenues
Capital
Operating
Contributions
Contributions
and Grants
and Grants

$
210,315
554,286
1. 104,553

$

445,080

$

$

200,484
19,423

253,077

2,122,231

53
225,120

Net (Expenses)
Revenues and
Changes in
Net Assets
Primary
Government
Governmental
Activities

770.252

$

(11,715,851)

770,252

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purpose
Property taxes, levied for debt service
Sales taxes
Franchise taxes
Business licenses and pennits
Other taxes
Motor vehicle in lieu, unrestricted
Investment earnings
Other

8,464,895
1,586,154
811,180
598,486
245,359
70,847
6,305
14,174
105,902
11,903,302

Total general revenues

187,451

Change in net assets

12.915.772

Net assets - beginning of fiscal year

(54,252)

Prior period adjustments

12,861,520

Net assets, beginning of fiscal year, restated
Net assets - end of fiscal year

See notes to basic financial statements
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(1,807,787)
(7,626.893)
(394.767)
(670.393)
(213.265)
(579,788)
(422,958)

$

13,048,971

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
.June 30.2012

Road
General
Fund

Assets
Cash and investments
Receivablcs:
Accounts
Prepaids items
Due ITom other funds
Restricted assets:
Investments with fiscal agent

Fund

2,053,339

1,131,759

369,405
26,926
153,515

3,748

$

2,605,075

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

346,844

575,126

Recreation
Fund

$

7,211

1,890

Total Assets

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Commited
Assib'11cri
LJnassib~led

Total Fund Balances

$

Isahel Cool<
Complex
Fund

Other
Governmentnl
Funds

120,200

772,053

15,213

112,026

Totul
Governmental
Funds

$

$

1,135,507

$

101,850

$

14,641

595,088

135,413

$

884,079

5,355,162

15,851
112,180

97,829
41,335
10

588,649
153,515
550,691

128,031

139,174

1,292,855

464,825
72,860
207,220

26,926
1,609,674
72,860
2,207,090
145,757

744,905

4,062,307

$

26,275
114,328

783, I 97

101,850

26,926
27,162

522,599

140,603

595,088

1,488,812
278,978

511,058

1,821,878

1,033,657

595,088

2,605,075

1,135,507

595,088

See notes to basic financial statements
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4,652,477
507,603
26,926
153,515

12,751

436,353

Total Liabilities

Total Liabilities and Fund
Balances

Measure G
2011 Bond
FUJld

Maintenance

$

(5,190)

(128,031 )

(5,190)

(128,031)

135,413

$

$

884,079

$

5,355,162

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2012

$

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

4,062,307

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Assets
are different because:
Capital assets net of depreciation have not been included as financial
resources governmental fund activity.

19,561,557

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City governmental activities are not
due and payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported
as fund liabilities. Also, bond issuance costs are not recorded as assets
under the modified accrual basis of accounting. All liabilities, both
current and long-term, are repOJied in the Statement of Net Assets.
Balances at June 30, 2012 are:

$

Pension Obligation Bonds
General Obligation Bonds
Deferred charges for issuance costs
Due insurance JP A
Compensated absences
Net OPEB obligation
Capital lease

(3,583,000)
(8,210,000)
178,348
(500,000)
(418,980)
(508,210)
(1,354,011)

( 14,395,853)

Accrued interest payable from the current portion of interest due on bonds
payable has not been reported in the governmental funds.

(163,898)

Long-term assets that are not available for current use are recorded as
deferred revenue under the modified accrual basis of accounting.

70,471

Payment to CalPERS or payoff of the pension side fund is recorded as a
prepaid item under the accrual basis of accounting but was an expenditure
in the governmental funds.

3,519,831

Internal service funds are used by management to charge costs of
certain activities, such as self-insurance, to
individual funds. The assets and liabilities ofthe internal service funds
must be added to the Statement of Net Assets.

394,556

$

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

See notes to basic financial statements
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TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended ,June 30,2012

General
Fund
Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Use of money and property
Current services charges
Fines and lorfeihlrcs
Other Revenue

$

Total Revenues

Road
Maintenance
Fund

10,740,575
790,650
123,426
12,297
174,372
160,504
26,705

$

610,166

Isahel Cook
Complex
Fund

$

Other
Governmental
Funds
$

965,911

177,796

616,373

965,911

79,328

955,667

109,530

12,352

11,748,393
790,650
1,044,141
133,236
1,323,270
160,504
40,671

1,372,928

15,240,865

17,728
171,104
229, I 48

5,074,903
7,660,761
735,438
931,091
1,630,830
696,964
1,630,398

$

55,738

10,486

991,516

397,652

Total
Governmental
Funds

915,613
40,024
7,287

79,328

1,614

5,057,175
7,489,657
506,290
931,091
509,895
696,964
26,754

601,642

162,623

290,037
176,545

290,037
339,168
61,279

1,541,942

19,050,869

61,279

Total Expenditures

15,279,105

991,516

162,623

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

(3,250,576)

(813,720)

453,750

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Transfers in
Transfers out

3,583,000
381,562
(981,565)

400,000

2,982,997

400,000

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)
Net Changes in Fund Balances

(267,579)

Fund Balances, .luly 1,2011

1,447,377

(70,471 )

Fund Balances, .luly 1, 2011, restated

1,821,878

109,530

(30,202)

(242)

1,447,377
$

1,033,657

(169,014)

(3,810,004 )

381,565
(381,562)

3,583,000
1,163,127
(1,363,127)

453,750

(242)

(30,202)

(169,011)

128,587

(4,948)

(97,829)

(532,625)

12,751

2,089,457
$

966,153

3,383,000

(413,720)

2,159,928

Prior Period Adjustments

Fund Balances, June 30, 2012

Recreation
Fund

5,102
1,105

482
175,700

12,028,529

Expenditures
Current:
General government
Public safety
Library
Planning and Building
Parks and Recreation
Public Works
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Bond issue costs

Measure G
2011 Bond
Fund

141,338
$

595,088

See notes to basic financial statements
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(97,829)

(4,948)
$

(5,190)

$

(128,031)

$

(427,004)
3,100,490

1,446,541

1,388,821

913,916

4,489,311

744,905

$

4,062,307

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

$

(427,004)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:
Governmental funds repOli capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by
which capitalizable capital outlays and the disposition of capital assets exceeded
depreciation in the current period.
Capital expenditures
Depreciation expense
The issuance of long-term debt provided financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funs. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental
funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar
items when the debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amort.ized in the Statement of Activities. This amount is the net effect of
this difference in the treatment of long-term debt and related items:
Principal payments
Proceeds from pension obligation bond issue
Some expenses repOlied in the Statement of Activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds (net change):
Interest expense
Amortization of issuance costs
OPEB contributions

$

1,627,847
(902,319)

725.528

290,037
(3,583,000)

(3,292,963)

(5,294)
(78,496)
( 127,446)

(211,236)

Payment of side fund CalPERS retirement obligation is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the payment is accounted for as a prepaid expense
in the Statement orNct Asscts (net change):

3.519,831

Compensated absences expense reported in the Statement of Activities
do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds (net change).

24,425

Bond issuance costs reported in the governmental funds are capitalized
and amortized over the life of the bonds in the government-wide
statements.

61,279

1nternal service funds are used by management to charge costs of certain
activities such as self-insurance to individual funds.
The net revenues (expenses) of the intel1lal service funds are repOlied with
governmental activities.

(212,409)

$

Change in net assets of govel1lmental activities

See notes to basic financial statements
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187,451

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2012

Governmental
Activities Internal
Service Funds
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and investments
Prepaid expenses

$

823,673
14,228

Total Cun"ent Assets

837,901

Total Assets

837.901

Liabilities
Currcnt Liabilitics:
Accounts payablc
Claims payable
Long-Term Liabilities:
Claims payable

15,719
139,642
287,984
443,345

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted

394,556
$

Total Net Assets

See notes to basic financial statements
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394,556

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Governmental
Activities Internal
Service Funds

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services

$

Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses:
Insurance costs

412,409
412,409

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Loss

(412,409)

Transfers:
Transfers in

200,000
200,000

Total Transfers

(212,409)

Change in Net Assets

606,965

Net Assets, July 1, 2011

$

Net Assets, June 30, 2012

See notes to basic financial statements
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394,556

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Governmental
Activities Internal
Service Funds
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services

$

(385,140)
(385,140)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Cash provided from other funds - transfers in

200,000
200,000

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

(185,140)

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

1,008,813

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Fiscal Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End ofthe Fiscal Year
Reconciliation of Operating Loss to
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities:
Operating loss
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued claims
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

See notes to basic financial statements

23

$

823,673

$

(412,409)

$

85
3,141
24,043
(385,140)
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TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Statement of Assets and Liabilities
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2012

Agency
Fund
ASSETS
Cash and investments

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Deposits payable

Total Liabilities

See notes to basic financial statements
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$

12,740

$

12,740

$

12,740

$

12,740
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NOTES TO BASTC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Town of San Anselmo
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

Note 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The basic financial statements of the Town of San Anselmo (the Town) have been prepared in confonnity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (USGAAP) as applied to
government agencies. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
A. Description of RepOl1ing Entity
The Town of San Anselmo, California was incorporated as a municipal corporation in 1907. The
Town is primarily a residential community located twenty miles nOl1h of San Francisco in Marin
County. The Town's current population is 12,400 and employs 52 permanent full time positions.
The Town operates under a Council-Manager fonn of government, with five elected Council members
served by a full-time Town Manager and staff. The staff is responsible for providing the following
servIces:
Public Safety- As ofJune 30, 2012, the Town employed 19 sworn and 7 non-sworn police officers
that provided police services to the Town from its headquarters at the Town Hall complex. For
fire services, the Town participates in the Ross Valley Fire Authority which provides services
within the Town's boundaries.
Streets and parks- The Town builds and maintains its streets, roads, and appUl1enances using a
workforce of 6. Major projects are contracted out to reduce costs.
Administration, library, recreation, planning, zoning, engineering, inspection, and other services
are provided by 20 employees.
As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these
financial statements present the finances of the Town and all of its component units, entities for which
the Town is considered financially accountable. As of June 30, 2012, the Town did not have any
component units that meet this criterion.
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus
The accounts of the Town are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses as
appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon
the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

Government-Wide Financial Statements
The Town's government-wide financial statements include a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement
of Activities. These statements report infonnation on all of the activities of the primary government
and its component unit.

27

Town of San Anselmo
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

Note 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (continued)
The government-wide financial statements are presented on an 'economic resources" measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the Town's assets and liabilities,
including capital assets and related infrastructure assets and long-term liabilities, are included in the
accompanying Statement of Net Assets. The Statement of Activities presents changes in net assets.
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned
while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred.
Certain types of transactions are reported as program revenues for the Town in three categories:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 in regard to interfund
activities, payables, and receivables.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements
Governmental fund financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and other
governmental funds aggregated. Accompanying reconciliations are presented to explain the
differences in net assets as presented in these statements to the net assets presented in the
government-wide financial statements.
All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or "current financial resources" measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and current
liabilities are included on the Balance Sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases
(expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both measurable
and available to finance expenditures of the current period.
Revenues are recorded when received in cash, except those revenues subject to accrual (generally 60
days after year-end) and recognized when due. The primary revenue sources, which have been treated
as susceptible to accrual by the Town, are property taxes, sales taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and
other taxes. Expenditures are generally recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund
liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on long-tenn liabilities, and compensated
absences which are recognized as expenditures only when payment is due.
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Note 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (Continued)

Governmental Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
Defen-ed revenues arise when potential revenues do not meet both the "measurable" and "available"
criteria for recognition in the current period. Defen-ed revenues also arise when the government
receives resources before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to
incurring qualifYing expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are
met or when the government has a legal claim to the resources, the defen-ed revenue is removed from
the balance sheet and revenue is recognized.
The funds designated as major funds are detennined by a mathematical calculation consistent with
GASB Statement No. 34. The Town reports the following major governmental funds:
The General Fund is used to account for all of the general operations and other financial transactions
of the Town, which are not accounted for by another fund.
The Road Maintenance Fund is used to account for monies received from Impact Fees and expended
from various services to fund street and highway improvements, including maintenance.
The Recreation Fund is used to account for the Town's various recreation activities.
The Isabel Cook Complex Fund is used to account for revenues received from renters ofthe complex
and is to be used for repairs and restoration work.
The Measure G 2011 Bond Fund is used to account for principal and interest payments associated with
the 2011 Measure G General Obligation Bonds.
Additionally, the Town repOlis the following fund types:
The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other
than for debt service or capital projects) that are restricted by law or administrative action or
committed to expenditures for specified purposes.
The Debt Service Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned for the payment of long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs for the
Muni capital lease used for the fire station and the 2003 Measure G General Obligation Bonds.
The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities.
The Internal Service Fund is used to account for interdepaJimental operations where it is the stated
intent that costs of providing services (insurance) to the depaJiments of the Town on a continuing
basis be financed or recovered primarily by charges to the user departments.
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Note 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (continued)

Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements
Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Assets, a Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets, and a Statement of Cash Flows, The Town's only proprietary
fund is its insurance internal service fund. The Insurance Internal Service Fund accounts for the risk
management activities of the Town including insurance and respective claims management. Fiduciary
Funds have a Statement of Assets and Liabilities
Proprietary funds are accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether CUlTent or nonculTent) are
included on the Statement of Net Assets. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Assets presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net assets. Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are
recognized in the period in which the liability is inculTed. The Fiduciary Funds use the full accrual
method of accounting but have no measurement focus.
Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary
operations of the fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses
are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations for the fund. All other expenses are
reported as non-operating expenses.
In both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, the Town applies all
applicable GASB pronouncements (including all National Council on Governmental Accounting
(NCGA) Statements and Interpretations cUlTently in effect) as well as the following pronouncements
issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board (F ASB) Statements and
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins
(ARB) of the committee on Accounting Procedure.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to
use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
Grant revenues are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements are met. Under
the terms of grant agreements, the Town may fund certain programs with a combination of
cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants and general revenues; thus, both restricted and
unrestricted net assets may be available to finance program expenditures. The Town's policy is to first
apply restricted grant resources to such programs, followed by general revenues if necessary.
Non-exchange transactions, in which the Town gives or receives value without directly receiving or
giving value in exchange, include taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On the accrual basis,
revenue from taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied or assessed. Revenue
from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.
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Note 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (Continued)

Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The Town follows Statements and Interpretations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board and
its predecessors that were issued on or before November 30, 1989, in accounting for its Intemal
Service Fund, unless they conflict with Govemment Accounting Standards Board pronouncements.
The reconciliations of the Govemmental Fund financial statements to the Govemment-Wide financial
statements are provided to explain the differences created by the integrated approach of GASB No.
34.
C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

Deposits and Investments
The Town's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
short-tenTI investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
Investments are reported at fair value. The Town's policy is generally to hold investments until
maturity or until market values equal or exceed cost.

Receivables and Payables
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of
interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans).

Property and Other taxes
Under Califomia law, property taxes are assessed and collected by the counties at up to 1% of
assessed value, plus other increases approved by the voters. The property taxes go into a pool and are
then allocated to the cities based on complex formulas.
The County of Marin collects property taxes for the Town. Tax liens attach annually on the first day of
January preceding the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Taxes are levied on July 1, and cover
the fiscal period July 1 to June 30. All secured personal property taxes and one-half of the taxes on
real property are due November 1; the second installment is due February 1. All taxes are delinquent,
ifunpaid, on December 10 and April 10, respectively. Unsecured personal property taxes become due
on March 1 each year and are delinquent, if unpaid on August 31.
On June 6, 1995, the Town received voter approved and authorization to issue $10.8 million in
General Obligation bonds to be repaid through ad valorum taxes levied upon all property within the
Town subject to taxation. The County of Marin assesses, levies, and collects these taxes.
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Note I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

Functional Classifications
Expenditures of the Governmental Funds are classified by function. Functional classifications are
defined as follows:
General Government includes legislative activities, which have a primary objective of providing legal
and policy guidelines for the Town. Also included in this classification are those activities that
provide management or support services across more than one functional area.
Public Safety includes those activities that involve the protection of people and property.
Planning & Building includes those activities such as planning, code enforcement, and building and
safety inspections.
Parks and Recreation includes those activities that involve the community cultural, recreation, and
leisure activities.
Public Works includes those activities that involve the maintenance and improvement of the Town's
streets, roads, and park development and maintenance.
Library includes all the activities associated with the Town's library.

Capital Assets
Capital assets include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks and similar items), and are reported in the applicable governmental activities column in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an
initial, individual cost of more than $2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years, These
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.
As permitted under GASB Statement No. 34 for small governmental entities, the Town has elected to
report infrastructure assets prospectively beginning in fiscal year 2003-04.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized.
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is included as part of the capitalized
value of the assets constructed on the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.
No interest was capitalized during the fiscal year ended June 30,2012.
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Note I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued)
Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:
Equipment
Vehicles
Furniture
Buildings
Improvements
Infrastructure

5 -20 years
5-20 years
5-20 years
30 years
30 years
25 years

Claims and Judgments
The Town records a liability for claims, judgments, and litigation when it is probable that an asset has
been impaired or a liability has been incurred prior to fiscal year-end and the probable amount of loss
(net of any insurance coverage) can be reasonably estimated.
The Town is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damages to, and destruction of
assets; en'ors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Town currently reports
all of its risk management activities in its Internal Service Fund. Claims expenditures and liabilities
are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. These losses include an estimate of claims that have been incurred, but not reported.

Compensated Absences
In governmental funds, compensated absences are recorded as expenditures in the year paid, as it is
the Town's policy to liquidate any unpaid vacation or compensation time at June 30, from future
resources rather than currently available expendable resources.
The entire unpaid liability is recorded in the Statement of Net Assets for Governmental Activities and
Proprietary Funds.
Employees accrue vacation, holiday, and compensatory time off benefits. Police employees accrue
sick time benefits and are eligible for 50% at the time of their retirement. Vacation may not accrue
beyond 30 days for non-safety employees and 360 hours for safety employees. The General Fund is
the fund that usually liquidates these liabilities as they become due.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
A substantial portion of the Town's investments is in short-tenn, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less. For purposes ofthe Statement of Cash Flows, all cash and
investments held by the Internal Service Fund is considered to be short-tenn and, accordingly, is
classified as cash and cash equivalents.
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Note 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

Fund Equity
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance as non-spendable, restricted,
committed, assigned, or unassigned based primarily on the extent to which the Town is bound to
honor constrains on how to specific amounts can be spent.

Non-spendable fund balance - that portion of a fund balance that includes amounts that
cannot be spent because they are either not in a spendable form, such as prepaid items,
inventories, or loans receivable.
Restrictedfund balance -that portion ofa fund balance that reflects constraints placed on the
use of resources (other than non-spendable items) that are either (a) externally imposed by
creditors (such as through debt covenants, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of
other govemments); or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. Examples of restricted fund balances include Street Maintenance, Library, and
debt service funds.
Committedfund balance -that portion of a fund balance that included amounts that can only
be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the
government's highest level of decision-making authority, and remain binding unless removed
in the same manner.
a) The Town Council, as the Town's highest level of decision-making authority, may
commit fund balance for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal
action taken such as ordinance or resolution.
b) These committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Town Council
removes or changes the specified use through the same type of formal action taken to
establish the commitment
c) Town Council Action to commit fund balance needs to occur within the fiscal reporting
periods; however the amount can be detennined subsequently.

Assigned fund balance -amounts that are constrained by the Town's intent to be used for
specific purposes, but are neither Restricted nor Committed, should be reported as Assigned
fund balance. This policy hereby delegated the authority to assign amounts to be used for
specific purposes to the Town Manager for the purpose of reporting these amounts in the
Town's annual financial statements. Examples of Assigned fund balance are funds intended
for Capital Improvement Projects and Equipment Replacement, amounts received for
specific projects as well as the Town's emergency reserve.
Unassigned fund balance --these are residual positive net resources in excess of what can
properly be classified in one of the other four categories and do not have any specific
spending limitations. The General Fund is the only fund that should report this category of
fund balance.
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Note I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
C. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

Fund Equity (Continued)

Fund Balance Policy
The accounting policies of the Town consider restricted fund balance to have been spent first when an
expenditure is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available. Similarly,
when an expenditure is inculTed for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted
classifications of fund balance could be used, the Town considers committed amounts to be reduced
first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned amounts.
Fund balances of the govemmental funds are reported separately within classifications based on a
hierarchy of constraints placed on the use of those resources. The classifications are based on the
relative strength of the constraints that control how the specific amounts can be spent. The
classifications are nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance. The
nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either not in spendable fonn or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Restricted
fund balances are those that have extemally imposed restrictions on their usage by creditors, such as
through debt covenants, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations. Assigned fund balances
include amounts that are constrained by the Town's intent to be used for specific purposes.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town's policy to use
restricted resources first, followed by the unrestricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned resources
as they are needed.

Net Assets
Net Assets are divided into three captions under GASB Statement No. 34. These captions apply only
to Net Assets as determined at the Govemment-Wide level, and are described below:

Invested in Capital Assets, net ofrelated debt describes the portion of Net Assets which is represented
by the cUlTent net book value of the Town's capital assets, less the outstanding balance of any debt
issued to finance these capital assets.
Restricted describes the portion of Net Assets which is restricted as to use by the terms and conditions
of agreements with outside parties, govemmental regulations, laws, or other restrictions which the
Town cannot unilaterally alter.
Unrestricted describes the portion of Net Assets which is not restricted as to use.
Restricted net assets are net assets that are subject to constraints either (1) extemally imposed by
creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulation of other govemments
or (2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. There were no net
assets at June 30,2012 that were restricted by enabling legislation.
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Note I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
D.

Post-Employment Health Care Benefits
The Town provides health care benefits for its retirees. Substantially all of the Town's employees may
become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age, are eligible for medical
coverage, and have actually retired from the Town.

E. Measure G Tax Levy
On June 6, 1995 the Town received voter approval and authorization to issue $ I 0.8 million in general
obligation bonds to be repaid through ad valorem taxes levied upon all property within the Town
subject to taxation. The Town has directed the County of Marin to levy and collect these taxes as
described in Note 1 above. As of June 30, 2003, the Town had issued all $10.8 million.

F. Bond Issuance Costs Advance Refunding of Long-tenn Debt
Bond issuance costs and original issue discounts/premiums are amortized over the lives of the related
bonds.
Accounting gains or losses resulting from advance refundings of long-tenn debt is defeITed in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 23, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Refundings of
Debt Reported by Proprietary Activities. DefeITed amounts on bond refundings are amortized over
the shOlier of the life of the new debt or refunded debt.
G. New Accounting Pronouncement

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 64
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the Town implemented GASB Statement No. 64, "Derivative
Instruments. Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions. This Statement establishes
standards to clarifY whether an effective hedging relationship continues after the replacement of a
swap counterparty or a swap counterparty's credit SUppOlt provider. This Statement establishes when
the effective hedging relationship continues and hedge accounting applies. The implementation of
this Statement did not have an effect on these financial statements.
H. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions.
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Note 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNT ABILITY
A. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The Town follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:
1.

The annual budget is adopted by the Town Council and provides for the general operation of the
Town. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2.

The Town Council approves total budgeted appropriations and any amendments to appropriations
throughout the year. This "appropriated budget" covers substantially all Town expenditures.
Actual expenditures may not exceed budgeted appropriations at the department level. The
Town's fund structure includes the following departments: Town Council, Town Manager/Town
Clerk, Administrative Services, Town Attorney, Public Safety, Community Development,
Recreation and Community Services, and Public Works. The Town Manager is authorized to
transfer budgeted amounts between the accounts of any department. Budgets are controlled at the
department level. Budget figures used in the financial statements are the final adjusted amounts,
including any amendments to the budget during the fiscal year.

3.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is
employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the Governmental Fund types during
the fiscal year. The Town does not utilize encumbrance accounting.

4.

Budgets for the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds are adopted
on a basis substantially consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (USGAAP). Accordingly, actual revenues and expenditures can be compared
with related budgeted amounts without any significant reconciling items. No budgetary
comparisons are presented for the POST Special Revenue Fund, the Muni Lease Debt Service
Fund, or the Internal Service Fund.

5.

Under Article XIIIB of the California Constitution (the Gann Spending Limitation Initiative), the
Town is restricted as to the amount of annual appropriations from proceeds of taxes, and if
proceeds of taxes exceed allowed appropriations, the excess must either be refunded to the State
Controller or returned to the taxpayers through revised tax rates or revised fee schedules, or an
excess in one year may be offset against a deficit in the following year. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012, based on calculations by Town management, proceeds of taxes did not exceed
appropriations.

B. Deficit Fund Balances in Individual Funds
The Recreation and Isabel Cook Complex major special revenue funds have deficit fund balance of
$5,190 and $128,031, respectively. It is the Town's expectations that future revenues will alleviate
these deficits.
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Note 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNT ABILITY (CONTINUED)
C. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations by Department in Individual Funds

Fund
General Fund:
General government
Public safety
Parks and recreation
Public works
Capital outlay
Isabel Cook Complex:
Parks and recreation
Nonmajor Funds:
Special Events
Parks and recreation
Measure G
General government
Equipment replacement
General government
Debt service
Principal

Expenditures

Appropriations

$

$

5,118,454
7,489,657
509,895
696,964
26,754

1,417,786
7,287,025
492,029
688,222
20,928

Excess
$

3,700,668
202,632
17,866
8,742
5,826

109,530

95,545

13,985

7,289

5,633

1,656

500

500

7,155

7,155

129,808

52,257

77,551

Note 3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and Investments
The following is a summary of cash and investments at June 30, 2012:
Pooled cash and investments
$
Restricted cash and investments with fiscal agent
Restricted cash and investments with fiscal agent - Agency Fund

5,476,149
14,641
12,740

-------"---

Total cash and investments

$

5,503,530

=========

Cash and investments as ofJune 30, 2012 consist of the following:
Cash on hand
Demand deposits
Investments
Total cash and investments

$

656
553,285
4,949,589

$

5,503,530

The Town follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds except for funds required to
be held by fiscal agents under provisions of bond indentures. Interest income earned on pooled cash and
investments is allocated monthly to the various funds based on monthly cash and investment balances.
Interest income from cash and investments with fiscal agents is credited directly to the related fund.
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Note 3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the Town's Investment Policy
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the Town by the California
Government Code (or the Town's investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also identifies
celiain provisions of the California Government Code (or the Town's investment policy, where more
restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not
address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions of bond
indentures of the Town, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the
Town's investment policy.

Authorized Investment Type
United States (U.S.) Treasury Issues
U.S. Government Agency Securities
California State and Local Bonds, Notes, & Warrants
Bankers Acceptance
Commercial Paper
Medium Term Corporate Notes (A)
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit
Repurchase Agreements
Passbook SavingslMoney Market
Local Agency Investment Fund (LA IF)
Federal Instrumentalities
N/A - Not Applicable

Maximum
Maturity

Maximum
Percentage
ofPortfolio*

Maximum
Investment
in One Issuer

None
None
None
180 days
270 days
5 years
None
None
None
None
None

None
None
None
40%
25%
30%
30%
None
None
$50 million
None

None
None
None
30%
10%
N/A
N/A

None
None
None
None

* Excluding amounts held by bond trustees that are not subject to California Government Code Restrictions

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements
Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt agreements,
rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the Town's investment policy.

Authorized Investment Type

Maximum
Maturity

Maximum
Percentage
of Portfolio*

Maximum
Investment
in One Issuer

United States (U.S.) Treasury Issues
U.S. Government Agency Securities
Banker's Acceptance
Commercial Paper
Money Market Mutual Funds
Investment Agreements
Local Agency Bonds
Medium Term Notes
Negotiable Certificate of Deposits
Local Agency Investment Fund (LA IF)

None
None
360 days
270 days
None
None
None
None
None
None

None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None

None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
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Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the Town manages its exposure to interest rate
risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter tenn and longer tenn investments and by timing cash flows
from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time
as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Town's investments (including investments held
by bond trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the
distribution of the Town's investments by maturity:
Remaining
Maturity
(in Months)
12 Months
or Less
$
4,934,948

Investment Type
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
Investment held by Bond Trustee:
Money Market Mutual Funds

14,641

$

4,949,589

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California
Government Code, the Town's investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating, by Standards
and Poor, as offiscal year end for each investment type:

Investment Type
LAIF
Investments held by Bond Trustee:
Money Market Mutual Funds
Totals

Total as of
June 30, 2012

Legal
Rating

Unrated

$ 4,934,948

N/A

$ 4,934,948

14,641

N/A

$ 4,949,589

N/A - Not Applicable
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Note 3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Concentration of Credit Risk
As of June 30,2012, the Town has not invested more than 5% of its total investments in anyone issuer.
Investments in external investment pools and money mutual funds are excluded from this requirement.

Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside paJiy. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk
that, in the event ofthe failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will
not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party. The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made
by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a
depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The fair value of the
pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the
public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure deposits by pledging first trust
deed mOJigage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. The Town's investment
policy does not contain any additional provisions that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for
deposits. However the policy does stipulate that mortgage collateral cannot be used to secure deposits,
and that the use of a third party bank trust department is to act as the Town's safekeeping agent for
investments. At June 30, 2012, the Town's deposits (bank balances) were insured by the Federal
Depository Insurance Corporation or collateralized as required under California Law.

Investment in State Investment Pool
The Town is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of
California. The fair value of the Town's investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial
statements at amounts based upon the Town's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the
entire LAIF pOlifolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for
withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LATF, which are recorded on an amOJiized
cost basis.
Note 4 INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Receivables/PayabJes
The following sets forth amounts due tolfrom funds. These amounts represent when one fund reflects a
deficit in its pooled cash account, generated from expenditures paid before revenue is received. These
amounts are short tenTI loans and are expected to be repaid within the next fiscal year.
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Note 4 INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

ReceivabJes/PayabJes (Continued)
A. Due to/Due from Other Funds
Fund

Amount

Major Funds:
General Fund
Isabel Cook Complex

$

Amount

153,515

$

112,180

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
Gas Tax
POST

38,271
3,064

B. Transfers
With Town Council approval, resources may be transferred from one Town fund to another. The
purpose of the majority of transfers, called operating transfers, is to reimburse a fund which has made
expenditures on behalf of another fund. Less often, a residual equity transfer may be made to open or
close fund.
Transfers between individual funds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, were as follows:
Transfers To
Major Fund:
General

Amount

$

Transfers From

381,562

Nonmajor Funds:
Gas Tax
POST

Amount

$

366,855

$

14,707
381,562

Major Fund:
Road Maintenance

$

400,000

Major Fund:
General

$

400,000

Nonmajor Funds:
Capital Reconstruction

$

21,486

Major Fund:
General

$

581,565

$

200,000
158,517
200,000
1,562
581,565

Insurance - IIS
Municipal Lease
Equipment Replacement
Special events

Transfers to the General Fund from the Other Governmental Funds (POST and Gas Tax Special
Revenue Funds) were made to offset the salary and training cost of the Town's school resource
officer, motor officer and the cost of police overtime associated with the DUI enforcement
checkpoints, as wel1 as funding Street Maintenance.
Transfers from the General Fund to other funds were made to fund road maintenance, fund future
capital replacement, fund the Town's insurance fund, and provide for celiain debt service
expenditures.
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Note 5 CAPITAL ASSETS
A. A summary of changes in the govemmental Activities capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30,
20 12 is as follows:
Prior
Balance at

Period

July 1,2011

Adjustment

Balance at
Additions

Deletions

June 30, 2012

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land

$

2,591,850

$

$

$

$

2,591,850

2,591,850
2,591,850

Depreciable capital assets:
2,948,506

Equipment/vehicles
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure
Total
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Equipment/vehicles
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure

Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net
Governmental activities
capital assets, net

$

220,346

3,164,891

(3,961)

12,118,669

50,667

12,169,336

8,448,252

1,356,834

9,805,086

23,515,427

1,627,847

(1,511,782)
(4,520,349)
(1,206,561 )
(7,238,692)

(3,760)
(28,796)
(32,556)

(237,850)
(326,539)
(337,930)
(902,319)

16,276,735

(32,556)

725,528

18,868,585

$

(32,556)

$

725,528

25,139,313

(3,961)

(1,745,671)
(4.850,648)
(1,573,287)
(8,169,606)

3,961

3,961

16,969,707

$

$

19,561.557

Depreciation expense was charges in Govemmental Activities long-term debt for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012:

General government
Public safety
Parks and recreation
Public works
Library

$

$
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74,088
245,509
85,112
423,229
74,381
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Note 6 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
The following is a summary of changes in Governmental Activities long-term debt (excluding claims and
adjustments) for the fiscal year ended June 30,2012:

Balance at
July 1,2011

2003 General Obligation Bonds
2011 General Obligation Bonds
2011 Premium on Go Bonds
2011 Deferred Loss on Refunding
Municipal Lease - Fire Station
2012 Pension Obligation Bonds
Capital Leases - Equipment
Due Insurance .lPA
Other Post Employment Benefits
Compensated Absences
Total

$

2,315,000
5,955,000
194,812
(211,198)

Prior
Period
Adjustment

Additions

$

Deletions

$

$

(60,000)
(13,833)
78,060
(92,530)

1,446.541
3,583,000

$

103,060
500,000
380,764
443,405

34,447

9,680,843

$ 1,480,988

Balance at
June 30. 2012

$ 2,255,000
5,955,000
180,979
(133,138)
1,354,011
3,583.000

Due Within
One Year

$

65,000
395,000
13,833
(25,423)
96,868
287.000

(137,507)
203,147
102,680

$ 3,888,827

$

(75,701)
(127,105)

500,000
508,210
418,980

(428,616)

$ 14,622,042

75,000
104,745

$

1,012,023

B. General Obligation Bonds
On August 1 1995, August 1, 1997, August 1 2000 and February 20, 2003, the Town issued
$2,125,000, $3,550,000, $2,560,000 and $2,565,000, respectively, in General Obligation Bonds (total
of $1 0.8 million), as authorized by Town Measure G, to finance capital improvements to the library,
streets and storm drains. Principal payments are due on August 1, with interest payments payable
semi-annually on February I and August I.
On April 7,2011, the Town issued $5,955,000 of2011 General Obligation Bonds for the purpose of
refunding the $5,894,928 of outstanding 1995, 1997, and 2000 General Obligation Bonds. The
interest rate for the new bond ranges from 2% to 4.38% as compared to the 1995, 1997, and 2000
bonds that had interest ranges of 5.0%-6.0%, 3.9%-5.35%, and 5.0%-8.0%, respectively. The
refunding took advantage of lower interest rates which were available and resulted in reductions in
debt service requirements over the life of the new debt. The net proceeds of $6,010,105 from these
bonds were transferred to a trustee and placed in an irrevocable trust to redeem the 1995, 1997, and
2000 General Obligation Bonds. The net proceeds of $6,010,105 includes a bond premium of
$194,812 and is net of$139,707 in issuance costs and underwriting fees. These funds were invested in
U.S. government securities to provide for the redemption price and interest through the call date.
Accordingly, the 1995, 1997, and 2000 General Obligation Bonds were removed from the balance
sheet as of June 30, 2012, as they are considered defeased.
The advanced refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition .price and the net canying
amount of the old debt of $211,198 which has been deferred in accordance with GASB Statement No.
23. The deferred amount on bond refunding is amortized over the remaining life of the old or new
debt, whichever is shorter, on a straight-line basis.
The obligation bonds of the 2003 and 2011 General Obligation Bonds as of June 30, 2012 were
$2,555,000 and $5,955,000 respectively.
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Note 6 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
B. General Obligation Bonds (Continued)
The annual debt service requests on these bonds are:
Fiscal Years
Ending
June 30,
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018-2022
2023-2027
2028-2029

2003

2011

Principal
$

Interest

65,000
70,000
80,000
85,000
90,000
585,000
845,000
435,000

102,571
99,702
96,515
93,009
89,290
375,881
213,091
21,461

$

2,255,000

$

395,000
405,000
430,000
465,000
495,000
2,705,000
1,060,000

$

204,494
194,469
179,794
164,219
149,819
473,225
72,708

1,438,728

5,955,000

1,091,520

Plus Premium on
Issuance

180,979

Less Deferred Loss
on Refunding
Balance

Interest

Principal

(133,138)
$

2,255,000

1,091,520

$

$

6,002,841

$

1,438,728

C. Municipal Lease - Fire Station
On February 1, 2008, the Town entered into a 15 year site lease agreement with Municipal Asset
Management, Inc. ("Corporation"), whereby the Town has leased to the Corporation the Town's Fire
Station No. 19 ("property"), and the Corporation made available to the Town $1.7 million through an
advanced rental payment to enable the Town to finance the restoration, remodeling and expansion of
the propeliy. The advanced rental payment has been recorded as deferred revenue on the
accompanying balance sheets. The Corporation will lease the propeJiy back to the Town, and the
Town will make lease payments for the use of the property.

Fiscal Years
Endng June 30,

Principal

Interest

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018-2022
2023

$

96,868
101,410
106,165
111,142
116,354
668,901
153,171

$

61,649
57,107
52,352
47,375
42,163
123,683
5,344

Totals

$

1,354,011

$

389,673
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Note 6 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
D. Pension Obligation Bonds
On or about June 7, 2012, the Town of San Anselmo issued $3,583,000 in 2012 Taxable Pension
Obligation Bonds. The proceeds are being used for the payment of costs of issuance of the bonds and
the refinancing of the Town's outstanding "side fund" obligations to the California's Public
Retirement System.
The bonds will mature on June 30, 2022 and bear interest at the rate on .64% per annum. The balance
will be subject to mandatory fund redemption from 2012 through 2022. Principal and interest is due
semi-annually each December 31 and June 30.
Optimal redemption can occur on any date or after June 30, 2017 at no premium.
The annual minimum debt service requirements for these bonds are:
Fiscal Years
Endng .June 30,

Interest

Principal

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018-2022

$

287,000
320,000
347,000
375,000
405,000
1,849,000

$

136,188
117,095
105,207
92,318
78,391
160,403

Totals

$

3,583,000

$

689,602

E. Other
In fiscal year 2003, the Town acquired a piece of property for $500,000 in connection with a
settlement agreement, and the Town had agreed to repair and stabilize a landslide on the property (see
Note 13). During fiscal years 2005 and 2006, costs of $168,626 and $581,377, respectively, were
incurred to stabilize the land. The Town's insurance carrier (Bay Cities Joint Powers Insurance
Authority) agreed to pay $500,000 of stabilization costs, for which it will be reimbursed upon the
eventual sale of the land.
The Town over the years entered into various leases for vehicles and equipment that qualified for
treatment as capital leases. All the balances of outstanding capital lease obligations were paid off
during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012. See Note 9 for additional information regarding the
Town's Other Post Employment Benefit obligation.
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Note 7 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
A. Plan Description
The Town of San Anselmo contributes to the California Public Employees' Retirement System
("CaIPERS"), an agent multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension plan. CalPERS
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to
plan members and beneficiaries. CalPERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for
participating public entities within the state of California. Benefit provisions and all other
requirements are established by state statute and Town ordinance. Copies of CaIPERS' annual
financial report may be obtained from their Executive Office, 400 Q Street, Sacramento, CA 95841.
B. Funding Policy
The Town provides a two tier retirementplan. Tier one includes employees hired before February I,
2007. Participation in this tier requires a contribution 8% (9% for safety employees) of their annual
covered salary. The Town makes the contributions required of Town employees on their behalf and
for their account. The Town is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the current rate
is 25.98% for non-safety employees and 42.64% for police employees, of annual covered payroll. For
employees hired on or after February 1, 2007 participation in tier two requires a contribution of 7%
(9% for safety employees) of their annual covered salary. The Town makes the contributions required
of Town employees on their behalf and for their account. The Town is required to contribute at an
actuarially determined rate; the CUlTent rate is 10.06% for non-safety employees and 21.25% for police
employees, of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members and the Town
are established, and may be amended, by CaIPERS.
C. Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal 2011 the Town's annual pension cost of $1 ,103,350 for CalPERS was equal to the Town's
required and actual contributions. The Town also contributed $725,020 toward the Ross Valley Fire
Service's annual pension cost. The required contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2009
actuarial valuation using the entry age nonnal actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions
included (a) 7.75% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), (b) projected annual
salary increases that vary by duration of service, and (c) 3.25% per year cost-of-living adjustments.
Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 3%. The actuarial value of CalPERS assets was
detennined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-tenn volatility in the market value of
investments over a three-year period (smoothed market value). CalPERS unfunded actuarial accrued
liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis.
D. Three-year trend information for CarPERS
Annual
Pension
Cost

Fiscal Year
6/30/2010
6/30/2011
6/30/2012

$

1,304,941
1,292,111
1,103,350

Percentage of
APC
Contributed
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
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Note 8 OTHER EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
A. Social Benefits
The Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990 ("OBRA") mandates that public sector employees
who are not members of their employer's existing retirement system as of January 1, 1992 be covered
by either Social Security or an alternative plan.
Employees covered under "OBRA" are required to contribute 5.65% in Social Security and Medicare
through their payroll and the Town contributes a total of7.65%. Total Social Security contributed on
behalf of the employee from the employee and Town for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was
$198,314 and $292,749, respectively. Contributions to medicare will split 50/50 between the Town
and employees in the amount of $ I 46,473.
B.

Deferred Compensation
Town employees may defer a portion of their compensation under a Town sponsored deferred
compensation plan (the "Plan") created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.
Under this Plan, pmiicipants are not taxed on the deferred portion of their compensation until it is
distributed to them. Distributions may be made only at termination, retirement, death, or in an
emergency as defined by the Plan.
The Town has no liability for any losses incurred by the Plan and does not participate in any gains, but
does have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The Town has
contracts with the International City Managers' Association ("ICMA") to manage and invest the
assets of the Plan. ICMA pools the assets of the Plan with those of other participants and does not
make separate investments for the Town.
The Town's contract with ICMA was amended January 1, 1997 to substitute a separate trust for the
Town as owner of the assets in this portion of the Plan, with the Town becoming the trustee. As
before, Plan assets are managed and invested solely by ICMA, while the assets in this portion of the
Plan are no longer subject to claims by creditors of the Town and are no longer reflected in the Town's
financial statements.

Note 9 POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH BENEFITS
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the Town implemented GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions by State and Local
Governmental Employers. This statement establishes unifonTI financial repOliing standards for employers
providing postemployment benefits. The provisions of this statement are applied on a prospective basis.
The Town provides medical insurance benefits under the CalPERS health plan to eligible retirees and
dependents in accordance with various labor agreements. Employees are eligible for retiree health
benefits if they retire from the Town on or after age 50 (unless disabled) and are eligible for a PERS
pension.
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Note 9 POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
The Town's policy is to fund these benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis, and paid $225 per retiree for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 (a total of$75,701 to the plan). The Town's annual other postemployment
benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer
(ARC), and amount which was detennined as part of a July 1, 20 II actuarial valuation in accordance with
the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover nonnal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities
(or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The ARC is subject to change with each
actuarial valuation date perfonned no less than every three years.
The Town has calculated and recorded the Net OPEB obligation, representing the difference between the
ARC, amOJiization and contributions, as follows:
Police
Annual required contributions (ARC) and
annual OPEB cost
Interest on OPEB
Adjustment to ARC
Annual ARC
Contributions made by Town
Increase in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligations, beginning of fiscal year
Net OPEB obligations, end of fiscal year

$

$

82,500
7,788
(7,248)
83,040
(30,03 I)
53,009
152,643
205,652

======

Total

Miscellaneous

$

$

119,300
11,250
(10,443)
120,107
(45,670)
74,437
228,121
302,558

$

$

201,800
19,038
(17,691)
203,147
(75,701)
127,446
380,764
508,210

A. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan as
understood by the employer and plan members, and include the types of plan benefits provided at the
time of the valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between employer and plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
assets, consistent with the long-tenn perspective of the calculations.
The actuarial cost method used for detennining the benefit obligations is the Projected Unit Credit
Cost Method. The actuarial assumptions include a 5% investment rate of retul11, covered payroll
increases of 3.5% per year, and an inflation rate of 3.25% per year or a maturity benefit rising $25
every third year. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) is being amOJiized as a level
percentage of projected payroll over 30 years.
B. Funded Status and Funding Progress
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about investment return, future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.
Amounts detennined regarding the funded status of the plan and annual required contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as requires
supplementary infonnation following the notes to the financial statements, presents three-year trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for plan benefits.
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Note 10 FUND EQUITY
Fund balances are presented in the following categories: nonspendable, restricted, assigned, and
unassigned. A detailed schedule of fund balances at June 30, 2012 is as follows:

General
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Expenses
Total

$

26,926

Road
Maintenance

Measure G
2011

Isabel
Cook

Recreation

Other

_$_ _ _ _ _$_ _ _ _ _$_ _ _ _ _$_ _ _ _ _$_ _ _ _ _$_---:2~6"':'.9'::'"26:_

26,926

26.926

Committed:
Robson House
Total
Restri cted:
Library
Streets and Roads
Measure G
Downtown Revitalization
Total
Assigned for:
Emergencies
Streets and Roads
Projects
Total
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

Total

72,860
72,860

72,860
72,860

595,088

141,116
190,456
133,253

595,088

464,825

141,116
713.055
742,121
13,382
1,609,674

207,220
207,220

1,488,812
511.058
207,220
2,207,090

522,599

13,780
13,382
27,162

522,599

1,488.812
511,058
1,488,812

511,058

278,978

$ 1,821,878

$ 1,033,657

$

595,088

$

(5,190)

145,757

(128,031)

(5,190)

$

(128,031)

$

744,905

$

4,062,307

Note II INSURANCE
The Town participates in a joint powers agreement through Bay Cities Joint Powers Insurance Authority
("BCJPIA'), which is a workers' compensation and general liability risk pool. The Town reports all of its
risk management activities in its Insurance Inte111al Service Fund. Claims expenditures and liabilities are
recorded when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably
estimated.
Bay Cities Joint Powers Insurance Authority ("BCJPIA") was created in 1986 by certain public agencies
in the Bay Area to provide auto, general liability and workers' compensation coverage. It is gove111ed by a
board of directors which is comprised of officials appointed by each member.
The BCJPIA is an "account pool" as defined by Gove111ment Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
10 ("GASB I 0"). The BCJPIA manages separate accounts for each pool member. Losses and expenses
are paid from these pools above the self-insured retention limit of $1 00,000 to $1,000,000 per occurrence.
This is the Primary Liability Program. Annually, the BCJPIA evaluates the financial risk cash position,
less claims reserves, claims incurred but not reported ("IBNR"), and claims development of each member
in the Primary Liability Program. If a member has a negative risk position, as defined by the BCJPIA, its
annual assessment is increased.
The BCJPIA purchases excess insurance above the $1,000,000 limit. This excess insurance provides risk
sharing pool coverage for its members of $1,000,000 up to $20,000,000 per occurrence. This is the Excess
Liability Program.
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Note 11 INSURANCE (CONTINUED)
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the Town incurred costs of $233,451 for coverage premiums
and administration ofthe risk pools.
The Town had the following balances at June 30, 2012:
Workers'
Compensation
Outstanding claims, end of period
Incurred but not reported
Total liability for unpaid claims

$

Discounted liabilities
Current portion
Noncurrent portion

$

$

$

General
Liability

90,047
240,130
330,177

$

330,177
101,796
228,381

$

$

$

Total

44,161
53,288
97,449

$

97,449
37,846
59,603

$

$

$

134,208
293,418
427,626
427,626
139,642
287,984

As allowed by GASB 10, the Town has recorded the discounted liabilities above, which includes the
recognition of investment income earned on funds held prior to payout.
Audited financial statements may be obtained from the Bay Cities Joint Powers Insurance Authority at
1831 K Street, Sacramento, CA 95811. Condensed unaudited financial infonnation of BCJPIA at and for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 is as follows:
Total assets
Total liabilities
Net assets

$

23,351,254
14,718,195
38,069,449

Total revenues
Total expenses
Change in net assets

$

9,602,251
10,411,102
(808,851 )

$

Note 12 JOINT POWERS AGENCIES
A. Ross Valley Fire Service
The Ross Valley Fire Service (the 'Fire Service') was created in 1982 under ajoint powers agreement
between the Towns of Fairfax and San Anselmo to provide fire protection, emergency medical, and
related services within the Fairfax-San Anselmo area. Primary funding for the Fire Service is through
contributions from the Towns. The Fire Service is governed by a board of directors appointed by the
two Towns and administered by the Town Manager of one of the Towns, as appointed by the board of
directors. The Town of San Anselmo's contribution to the Fire Service for the fiscal year ended June
30,2012 was $2,975,500 for operations and $46,755 for equipment replacement. Audited financial
statements may be obtained from Ross Valley Fire Service, 777 San Anselmo Avenue, San Anselmo,
CA 94960.
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Note 12 JOINT POWERS AGENCIES (CONTINUED)
B. Ross Valley Paramedic Authority
The Ross Valley Paramedic Authority ("RVPA") was created on December 14, 1982 by the Town of
Corte Madera, Town of Fairfax, Kentfield Fire Protection District, City of Larkspur, County of Marin,
Town of Ross, Town of San Anselmo, and Sleepy Hollow Fire Protection District to provide
paramedic services to these eight public entities. The RVPA is controlled by an eight member board
consisting of one member from each of the participating entities. None of the entities exercises
specific control over the budgeting and financing of the RVPA's activities. The County of Marin Fire
Department assigns seven full-time County employees as well as supervision by County fire
department superior officers to render the paramedic service. Audited financial statements may be
obtained by mailing a request to Bob Sinnott at City of Larkspur, 400 Magnolia Avenue, Larkspur,
CA 94939.
RVPA's operations are financed by its members, through a tax on each residential unit and an
equivalent taxfor commercial property. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the tax was $42
per living unit and per 1,500 square feet of stmcture on parcels in non-residential use. The City of
Larkspur maintains the books and records of the RVPA.
C. Marin Telecommunications Agency
The Marin Telecommunications Agency was created in 1998, by an agreement between the County of
Marin, the Cities of Belvedere, Larkspur, Mill Valley, Sausalito, and San Rafael, and the Towns of
Corte Madera, Ross, San Anselmo, Fairfax, and Tiburon. The agreement provides for the regulation of
rates for certain cable television services and equipment pursuant to the Cable Television Consumer
Protection and Competition Act of 1992. The financial responsibility of each member is based on the
number of its cable television subscribers. Audited financial statements may be obtained by mailing a
request to the Marin Telecommunications Agency at Marin County Auditor-Controller, County of
Marin, Room 225, San Rafael, CA 94903.
D. Marin General Services Authority
The Marin General Services Authority ("Authority) was created on April 26, 2005 to replace the
Marin Street Light Acquisition Authority. All the original members of the Marin Street Light
Acquisition Authority are eligible for membership. The Authority is established to finance,
implement, and manage various municipal services within the member agencies including the taxicab
regulation program and infonnation management services. All assets and funds of the Street Light
Authority are transferred to the General Services Authority. The financial responsibility of each
member is based on a relative population and assessed value formula. Audited financial statements
may be obtained by mailing a request to the Marin Street Light Authority at Marin County
Auditor-Controller, County of Marin, Room 225, San Rafael, CA 94903.
E. Marin Emergency Radio Authority
The Town participates in a joint powers agreement through the Marin Emergency Radio Authority
("MERA") under an operating agreement dated Febmary 1, 1999. MERA was created July 1, 1997 by
an agreement between certain public agencies in Marin County to provide a public safety radio system
to its members. The members have agreed to assign a portion of their property tax revenues to make
annual payments on a pro rata basis to cover the costs of debt financing and operating the system.
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Note 12 JOINT POWERS AGENCIES (CONTINUED)
The Town's annual share of the payments related to the debt financing is as follows:
Fiscal Years
Endng June 30,
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018-2022

$

64,291
64,159
64,128
64,143
64,149
320,892
641,762
(116,890)
524,872

Less - interest

$

F. Red Hill Community Authority
The Red Hill Community Joint Powers Authority ('RHCA") was created on January 13,2004 by the
Town of San Anselmo and Tamalpais Union High School District to develop the Red HiII community
park and its ongoing use. RHCA's operations are financed through fundraising from the public.
Audited financial statements may be obtained by mailing a request to the Town of San Anselmo at 525
San Anselmo Avenue, San Anselmo, CA 94960.
Note 13 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The Town has outstanding construction commitments atJune 30, 2012 of approximately $1.7 million.
The Town is a defendant in a number of lawsuits which have arisen in the nonnal course of business.
Damages are alleged in some of these actions and their outcome cannot be predicted with certainty.
However, in the opinion of the Town Attomey, the outcome of these actions will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial position of the Town.
The Town participates in several federal and state grant programs. The programs are subject to
exam ination by the granters and the amount, if any, of expenses which may be disallowed by the granting
agency cannot be detennined at this time. The Town expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial too.
Note 14 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On September 14,2012, the Town issued a tax and revenue anticipation note in the amount of$I.7 million
to the County of Marin, Califomia. This note is due on 12114/12 carries an interest rate of 3.5% and all
property tax revenue to be received by the Town is pledged. The amount does not exceed 85% of
anticipated revenue and proceeds are to be used for operations.
The Town has evaluated subsequent events through November 30, 2012, the date these financial
statements were available to be issued, and has detennined there were no material events requiring
disclosure.
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Note 15 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS
The following adjustments to prior years fund balances in the governmental funds:
a) The general fund fund balance was adjusted for $(70,471) that represents a long-tenn receivable
and therefore should have been recorded as a deferred revenue under the modified accrual basis of
accounting.
b) The Measure G 2011 fund was adjusted by $12,751 which represented cash with fiscal agent that
was not reported.
c) The Muni Lease Debt Service fund was adjusted by $1,446,541 which was for a long-term debt
that was repOlied as deferred revenue.
The following adjustments were made to beginning net assets in the govemment-wide statements:
a) An adjustment was made in the amount of $(32,556) for correction ofunderreported accumulated
depreciation.
b) An adjustment of $12,751 was made which represented cash with fiscal agent that was not
reported.
c)

An adjustment of $(34,447) was made as long-term capital leases were understated in the prior
year.
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Town of San Anselmo
Other Post-Retirement Benefits
Schedule of Funding Progress (Unaudited)
June 30, 2012
Using the most recent actuarial valuation dated July I, 2011, the following is the funded status of the OPEB plan as of the actuarial date:

Entry Age
Normal
Accrued
Liability
(A)

Date
7/1/2008
7/1/2011

$

1.747.300
I. 941. 900

Unfunded
Liability/
(Excess
Assets)
«A)-(B))

Actuarial
Value of
Assets
(B)

$

$

1.747,J00
1.941.900
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Funded
Ratio
«B)/(A))
0%
0%

Covered
Payroll
(C)

$

47,046.000
49.756.000

Actuarial
Accrued Liability
% of Covered
Payroll
«A-B)/C)
46.900%
47.730%

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Budgeted Amounts

VaJ"iance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

Original

Final

Actual

$ 10,819,916
703.607
111 ,666
15,000
182,393
124,893
13,087

$ 10,754,916
703,607
111,666
15,000
182,393
124,893
19,538

$ 10,740,575
790,650
123.426
12,297
160,504
174,372
26,705

11,970,562

11,912,013

12,028,529

45,848
832,878
165,392
373,668

45,848
832,878
165,392
373,668

37,326
844,241
332,500
3,904,387

8,522
(11,363)
(167,108)
(3,530,719)

1,417,786

1,417,786

5, 118,454

(3,700,668)

7,287,025
525,182
947,882
492,029
666,222
20,928
11,357,054

7,287,025
531,633
947,882
492,029
688,222
20,928
11,385,505

7,489,657
506,290
931,091
509,895
696,964
26,754
15,279,105

(202,632)
25,343
16,791
(17,866)
(8,742)
(5,826)
(3,893,600)

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

613,508

526,508

(3,250,576)

(3,777,084)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Transfers in
Transfers out

355,546
(981,565)

355,546
(981,565)

3,583,000
381,562
(981,565)

3,583,000
26,016

(626,019)

(626,019)

2,982,997

3,609,016

(12,511)

(99,511)

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and penn its
Intergovernmental
Use of money and property
Fines and forfeitures
Current services charges
Other Revenue
Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Town council
Administrative services
Legal services
Non-departmental
Total General Government
Public safety
Library
Planning and Building
Parks and Recreation
Public works
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance, .J u Iy I, 2011
Prior Period Adjustments
Fund Balance, July I, 2011, Restated
Fund Balance, June 30, 2012

$

2,159,928

2,159,928

2,159,928

2,159,928

2,147,417

$
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2,060,417

$

$

(14,341 )
87,043
11.760
(2,703)
(21,889)
49,479
7,167
116,516

(267,579)

(168,068)

2,159,928
(70,471)
2,089,457

(70,471)
(70,471)

1,821,878

$

(238,539)

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Road Maintenance Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Revenues
Use of money and propelty
Other revenue
Current services charges

$

500

Actual

Final

$

500

$

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$

(18)
1,614
7,100

168,600

168,600

482
1,614
175,700

169,100

169,100

177,796

8,696

1,276,889

1,276,889

991,516

285,373

Total Expenditures

1,276,889

1,276,889

991,516

285,373

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over
Expenditures

(1,107,789)

(1,107,789)

(813,720)

294,069

Total Revenues
Expenditures
Capital outlay

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance. July 1, 2011
Fund Balance, June 30, 2012

400,000

400,000

400,000

400,000

400,000

400,000

(707,789)

(707,789)

(413,720)

1,447,377

$

739,588
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1,447,377

1,447,377

$

739,588

294,069

$

1,033,657

$

294,069

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Recreation Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Revenues
Cun-ent services charges

$

Total Revenues
Expenditures
Current:
Parks and recreation
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

988,215

Final
$

988,215

Actual
$

965,91 I

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)
$

(22,304)

988,215

988,2 I 5

965,91 I

(22,304)

988,215

988,215

955,667
10,486

32,548
(10,486)

988,215

988,215

966,153

22,062

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over
Expenditures

(242)

(242)

Net Change in Fund Balance

(242)

(242)

Fund Balance, June 30, 2012

$

(4,948)

58

(4,948)

(4,948)

(4,948)

Fund Balance, July 1,20 II

$

(4,948)

$

(5,190)

$

(242)

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Isabel Cook Complex Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

Budgeted Amounts
Final

--2.!:.!.ginal _
Revenues
Use of money and property

$

74,256

$

74,256

Actual
$

79,328

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)
$

5,072

74,256

74,256

79,328

5,072

95,545
600

95,545
600

109,530

(13,985)
600

Total Expenditures

96,145

96,145

109,530

(13,385)

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over
Expenditures

(21,889)

(21,889)

(30,202)

(8,313)

Net Change in Fund Balance

(21,889)

(21,889)

(30,202)

(8,313)

Fund Balance, July 1, 20 II

(97,829)

(97,829)

(97,829)

Total Revenues
Expenditures
CUlTent:
Parks and recreation
Capital outlay

Fund Balance, June 30,2012

$

(119,718)
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$

(119,718)

$

(128,031)

$

(8,313)
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TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Measure G 2011 Bond Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Budget
Final
Revenues
Taxes
Propeliy taxes
Other taxes
Use of money and property
Intergovel11mental

$

Actual

568,234

$

609,023
1,143
1,105
5,102

Val'iance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$

40,789
1,143
1,105
5,102

568,234

616,373

48,139

Expenditures
Debt Service:
Interest and fiscal charges

164,123

162,623

1,500

Total Expenditures

164,123

162,623

1,500

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over
Expenditures

404, III

453,750

49,639

Net Change in Fund Balance

404,111

453,750

49,639

Fund Balance, July 1, 2011
Prior Period Adjustments
Fund Balance, July 1, 2011, Restated

128,587

128,587
12,751
141,338

12,751
12,751

Total Revenues

Fund Balance, June 30, 2012

128,587

$

532,698
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$

595,088

$

62,390

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2012

Special Revenue Funds

Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Accounts and due ITom other governments

$

201,497

$

$

64,622

$

266,119

$

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

$

75,663

$

38,271

141,967
4,493

38,271

Total Assets

$

146,460

$

5,344

38,271

Fund Balances:
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

$

62

5,344

38,271

75,663

Total Liabilities

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Library
Services

Gas
Tax

Grant

190,456

141,116

190,456

141,116

266,119

$

38,271

$

146,460

Special Revenue Funds

Robson
HOllse

$

77,095

Supplemental
Law
Enforcement
Service

$

Special
Events

$

5,045

Total
Special
Revenue
Funds

POST

$

$

110,450

3,064
$

77,095

$

$

5,045

$

$

4,235

$

$

199

$

3,064

$

536,054

$

3,064

85,441
41,335
10

3,064

126,786

10
4,235

209

331,572
72,860

72,860

72,860
$

77,095

425,604

$

$

4,836

4,836

4,836

409,268

5,045

$

3,064
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$

536,054
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Debt Service Funds

Muni
Lease

Measure G
Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Accounts and due from other governments
Total Assets
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

$

131,677

Total
Debt
Service
Funds

$

$

1,576

1,576
$

133,253

$

131,677

$

$

$

$

133,253

Total Liabilities
Fund Balances:
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

$

133,253

133,253

133,253

133,253

133,253

64

$

$

133,253

Capital Pro.iects Funds

Capital
Reconstruction

$

166,551

Total
Capital
Projects
Funds

Equipment
Replacement

$

48,221

$

214,772

Total
Nonmajor
Funds

$

772,053
112,026

$

166,551

$

$

12,388

$

48,221

$

214,772

$

12,388

97,829
41,335
10

12,388

139,174

12,388

$

154,163

48,221

202,384

154,163

48,221

202,384

166,551

$

48,221

$

214,772
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$

884,079

464,825
72,860
202,384
4,836
744,905

$

884,079

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances
Nonma.ior Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Special Revenue Funds

Gas
Tax

Grant
Revenues:
Taxes
Use of money and property
intergovemmental
Current services charges
Other revenue

$

Library
Services
$

$

221,932

366,855

423,181
58

Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
General govemment
Public safety
Library
Parks and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

221,932

366,855

423,239

229,148
438,665

229,148

438,665

Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over
Expenditures

(7,216)

366,855

(15,426)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out

(366,855)
(366,855)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

(7,216)

Net Change in Fund Balances

(15,426)

Fund Balances (Deficits), July 1, 2011

205,882

148,332

205,882

148,332

Prior Period Adjustments
Fund Balances (Deficits), July 1, 20 11, Restated
Fund Balances (Deficits), June 30, 2012

$

66

190,456

$

$

141,116

Special Revenue Funds

Robson
House
$

Supplemental
Law
Enforcement
Service

$

Special
Events
$

Total
Special
Revenue
Funds

POST

20,577

221,932
39,734
910,613
7,287
58

20,577

1,179,624

5,870

105,870
229,148
55,738
438,665

5,870

829,421

14,707

350,203

(14,707)

1,562
(381,562)

(14,707)

(380,000)

$

$

39,734
100,000
7,287

100,000

39,734

7,287

100,000
48,449

7.289

100,000

48,449

7,289

(8,715)

(2)

1,562

1,562

$

(8,715)

1,560

(29,797)

81,575

3,276

439,065

81,575

3,276

439,065

72,860

$

$

4,836

$

$
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TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances
Nonma.ior Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Debt Service Funds

Muni
Lease

Measure G
Revenues:
Taxes
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Current services charges
Other revenue

$

175,720
290

$

$

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Library
Parks and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over
Expenditures

60,000
105,653

92,530
65,987

152,530
171,640

165,653

158,517

324,170

(158,517)

(148,160)

158,517

158,517

158,517

158,517

10,357

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

10,357

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances (Deficits), July 1,2011

10,357

122,896

Prior Period Adjustments
Fund Balances (Deficits), July L 2011, Restated

(1,446,541)

(1,323,645)

1,446,541

1,446,541
122,896

122,896
$

175,720
290

176,010

176,010

Total Revenues

Fund Balances (Deficits), June 30, 2012

Total
Debt Service
Funds

133,253
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$

$

133,253

Capital Projects Funds

Capital
Reconstruction
$

Total
Capital
Projects
Funds

Equipment
Replacement

Total
Nonmajor
Funds

$

5.000

5,000

12,294

12,294

397,652
40,024
915,613
7.287
12,352

17,294

17,294

1,372,928

65.234

17.728
65,234

112,310

162,977

17.728
171.104
229,148
55,738
601,642

137,507
4,905

137,507
4,905

290,037
176,545

68,395

319,956

388,351

1,541,942

(51,101)

(319,956)

(371,057)

(169,014)

21,486

200,000

221,486

381,565
(381,562)

21,486

200,000

221,486

3

(29,615)

(119,956)

(149,571)

(169,011)

183.778

168,177

351,955

(532,625)

$

17.728

50,667

1,446,541
183,778
$

154,163

168,177
$

48,221

913,916

351,955
$

202,384
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$

744,905

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Grant Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Budget
Final
Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Other revenue

$

Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

1,345,025

Actual

$

423,181
58

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$

(921,844)
58
(921,786)

1,345,025

423,239

1,479,306

438,665

1,040,641

1,479,306

438,665

1,040,641

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over
Expenditures

(134,281 )

(15,426)

118,855

Net Change in Fund Balance

(134,281 )

(15,426)

118,855

205,882

205,882

Fund Balance, July 1, 20 II
Fund Balance, June 30, 2012

$

71,601
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$

190,456

$

118,855

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Gas Tax
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Budget
Final
Revenues:
Intergovemmental

$

Total Revenues
Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over
Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

335,546

Actual
$

366,855

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)
$

335,546

366,855

31,309

335,546

366,855

31,309

(335,546)

(366,855)

(31,309)

(335,546)

(366,855)

(31,309)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance, July 1,2011
Fund Balance, June 30, 2012

31,309

$

$

71

$

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Library Services
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

Budget
Final
Revenues:
Taxes

$

220,000

Actual

$

221,932

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$

1,932

220,000

221,932

1,932

251,758

229,148

22,610

Total Expenditures

251,758

229,148

22,610

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over
Expenditures

(31,758)

(7,216)

24,542

Net Change in Fund Balance

(31,758)

(7,216)

24,542

Fund Balance, July 1, 2011

148,332

Total Revenues
Expenditures:
CUlTent:
Library

Fund Balance, June 30, 2012

$

116,574
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148,332

$

141,116

$

24,542

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Robson House
Fo," the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

Budget
Final
Revenues:
Use of money and property

$

42,594

Actual
$

39,734

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)
$

(2,860)
(2,860)

42,594

39,734

48,779

48,449

330

Total Expenditures

48,779

48,449

330

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over
Expenditures

(6,185)

(8,715)

(2,530)

Net Change in Fund Balance

(6,185)

(8,715)

(2,530)

Fund Balance, July 1, 2011

81,575

81,575

Total Revenues
Expenditures:
CUlTent:
Parks and recreation

Fund Balance, June 30, 2012

$

75,390
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$

72,860

$

(2,530)

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Supplemental Law Enforcement Service
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

Budget
Final
Revenues:
Intergovernmental

$

Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Total Expenditures

100,000

Actual

$

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over
Expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance, July 1,2011
Fund Balance, June 30, 2012

$

$

74

$

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Special Events
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Budget
Final
Revenues:
Cunent services charges
Other revenue

$

Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Cunent:
Parks and recreation
Total Expenditures

5,549
201

Actual
$

7,287

1,537

5,633

7,289

(1,656)

5,633

7,289

(1,656)

1,562

1,562

1,562

Net Change in Fund Balance

1,679

1,560

Fund Balance, July I, 20 II

3,276

3,276

$

4,955

75

(119)

(2)

1,562

Fund Balance, June 30, 2012

1,738
(201)

7,287

117

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

$

5,750

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over
Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$

4,836

(119)

$

(119)

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Measure G
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Budget
Final
Revenues:
Taxes
Use of money and property

$

165,545

Actual
$

175,720
290

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)
$

10,175
290
10,465

Total Revenues

165,545

176,010

Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

60,000
105,355

60,000
105,653

(298)

165,355

165,653

(298)

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over
Expenditures

190

10,357

10,167

Net Change in Fund Balance

190

10,357

10,167

122,896

122,896

Total Expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1, 2011
Fund Balance, June 30, 2012

$

123,086

76

$

133,253

$

10,167

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Capital Reconstruction
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

Budget
Final
Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Other revenue

$

5,000
7,000

Actual

$

5,000
12,294

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$
5,294

12,000

17,294

5,294

71,246
114,907

17,728
50,667

53,518
64,240

Total Expenditures

186,153

68,395

117,758

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over
Expenditures

(174,153)

(51,101)

123,052

21,486

21,486

21,486

21,486

Net Change in Fund Balance

(152,667)

(29,615)

Fund Balance, July 1, 201 I

183,778

183,778

Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Capital outlay

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Fund Balance, June 30, 2012

$

31,111

77

$

154,163

123,052

$

123,052

TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Equipment Replacement
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Budget
Final
Revenues:
Intergovernmental

$

Total Revenues

38,581

Actual

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

$

$

(38,581)

38,581

Expend itures:
Current:
Public safety
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

(38,581)

64,080
230,907

65,234
112,310

(1,154)
118,597

79,219
4,905

137,507
4,905

(58,288)

Total Expenditures

379,111

319,956

59,155

Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over
Expenditures

(340,530)

(3 I 9,956)

20,574

200,000

200,000

200,000

200,000

(140,530)

(119,956)

168,177

168,177

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance, July 1, 20 II
Fund Balance, June 30, 2012

$

27,647

78

$

48,221

20,574

$

20,574
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November 30, 2012
Members of Town Council
Town of San Anselmo
525 San Anselmo Avenue,
San Anselmo, CA 94960
To the Members of Town Council:
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Town of San Anselmo (Town), as of
and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, we considered the Town’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control)
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. No material weaknesses have
been identified during the audit and, thus, none are being communicated.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material
weakness and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such deficiencies have been identified. In addition,
because of inherent limitations in internal control, including the possibility of management override of
controls, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected by such controls. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We
consider the deficiency presented in the current year recommendations section as Finding 2012-01 to be a
significant deficiency in internal control.
During our audit we noted certain other matters involving internal controls and their operations, and are
submitting for your consideration, the related recommendations designed to help the Town make
improvements and achieve operational efficiencies. These recommendations are described in the current year
recommendations section as Findings 2012-02 through 2012-08. Our comments reflect our desire to be of
continuing assistance to the Town.
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The Town’s written responses to the items identified in our audit are described in the current year
recommendations section. We did not audit the Town’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
them. In addition, we would be pleased to discuss the recommendations in further detail at your convenience,
to perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in implementing these recommendations.
We have included in this letter a summary of communication with the members of the Town Council as
required by professional auditing standards. We would like to thank the Town’s management and staff for the
courtesy and cooperation extended to us during the course of our engagement. The accompanying
communications are intended solely for the information and use of management, the members of the Town
Council, and others within the Town, and are not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.
This report is intended solely for the use of the Town Council and management of the Town of San Anselmo
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP
Culver City, CA
November 30, 2012
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November 30, 2012
Members of Town Council
Town of San Anselmo
525 San Anselmo Avenue,
San Anselmo, CA 94960
To the Members of the Town Council:
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and the major fund of the Town of San
Anselmo for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Professional standards require that we provide you with the
information about our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and
timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated June 27, 2012.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.
Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the Town of San Anselmo are described in Note 1 of the notes to the basic
financial statements. As discussed in Note 1 of the notes to the basic financial statements, one new accounting
policy was adopted during the fiscal year. The new policy is GASB Statement No. 64. We noted no
transactions entered into by the Town of San Anselmo during the fiscal year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.
The most sensitive estimates affecting the Town’s financial statements were:
Management’s estimates include the funding progress of CalPERS, the estimated historical cost and
useful lives of capital assets, and the assumptions used for estimating the other postemployment benefits
liability. These estimates are based on CalPERS’s actuarial estimates, historical data and industry
guidelines for capital assets, and the actuarial tables provided by GASB and a third party actuary for
postemployment benefits payable. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
estimates above in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a
whole.
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Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management
has corrected all such misstatements. The following material misstatement detected as a result of audit
procedures were corrected by management: Adjustment for the accounting method used by the Town for its
municipal lease of the fire station.
Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant
to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose
during the course of our audit.
Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated November 30, 2012.
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of
an accounting principle to the Town of San Anselmo’s financial statements or a determination of the type of
auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there
were no such consultations with other accountants.
Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Town of San Anselmo’s auditors. However,
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.
Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements
This information is intended solely for the use of the Town Council of the Town of San Anselmo and
management and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP
Culver City, CA
November 30, 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Members of Town Council
Town of San Anselmo
San Anselmo, California
We have audited the financial statements of the Town of San Anselmo (Town) as of and for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon, dated November 30, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Management of The Town of San Anselmo is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town’s internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s
internal control over financial reporting.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a
timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above. However we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings that we considered to be significant deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting (Findings 2012-01 through 2012-12). A significant deficiency is a deficiency or
combination of deficiencies in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important
enough to warrant attention by those charged with governance.
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We noted certain other matters that we reported to the management of the Town in a separate letter dated
November 30, 2012.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective
of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
The Town’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of
findings. We did not audit the Town’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the Town, and the Town
Council and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP
Culver City, California
November 30, 2012
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CURRENT YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS

Significant Deficiency
2012-01

Finding – Lack of segregation of duties over payroll
During our test of payroll, we noted that the employee who prepares payroll can also
change the wage rates and enter new employees into the accounting system.
Effect:
There is an increased risk of misappropriation of funds that could go undetected.
Recommendation:
We recommend that the Town ensure that payroll and personnel duties are handled
by different employees and that there is a separate responsible individual
reviewing/approving the changes prior to processing.
Management’s Response:
The payroll is prepared by the Accounting and Benefits Technician and reviewed by
the Finance and Administrative Services Director prior to submission to the outside
payroll vendor. The Town has purchased financial software with the intention of
bringing the payroll in house. Staff will contact the payroll vendor to see if there is
the possibility of running a report which will show all changes each pay period. Until
payroll is brought in house, the Accounting and Benefits Technician will run a
payroll prelist, review it with the Finance and Administrative Services Director, make
any changes necessary in the presence of the Finance and Administrative Services
Director and submit the payroll in the presence of the Finance and Administrative
Services Director.

Other Matters
2012-02

Finding – Cash collection deficiencies at the Library
During our fieldwork, we noted that there is no cash register that is in use and the
cash drawer is kept unlocked during the day. There is also no summary report of
receipts issued that is printed out at the end of the day, just a manual excel
spreadsheet. The keys to the cash drawer and petty cash drawer are kept in an
unlocked drawer behind the counter. Receipts are not issued to every customer, only
to customers who request one. Also, during our count of petty cash, we noted that the
change fund should always have $100; however there was $461.84 in the change
fund.
Effect:
Without a cash register or a locked cash drawer, there is an increased risk of
misappropriation of funds. Also, the excel spreadsheet that is used to reconcile cash
to the end of the day may not be reflective of transactions actually recorded onto the
cash receipts system, which increases the risk of inaccuracies and also the potential
for misappropriations of funds. In addition, if there is no reconciliation
accountability, the change funds may be misappropriated.
Recommendation:
We recommend that cash registers be locked when not being used by employees and
that cash be reconciled to a summary report printed from the library’s cash receipting
system. Receipts should also be given to all customers. In addition, we recommend
that the Finance Department perform change fund counts on a random basis.
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Other Matters (Continued)
Management’s Response:
This discrepancy was brought to the Town's attention by the independent auditors in
June 2012. As a result of the auditors pointing this out, library staff discovered that
the Marin Net program they were using was able to print out a summary of receipts.
Staff now reconciles to this summary report and submits a copy of the report with the
daily deposit. The cash drawer is kept locked, receipts are given to all customers and
additional cash is not put into petty cash but is deposited with the finance department.
2012-03

Finding – Cash collection deficiencies at the Police Department
During our review of the Police Department internal controls, we noted that parking
permits are not pre-numbered. Also, a cash register is not being utilized and that the
cash receipts received are kept on the Records Manager’s desk throughout the day
and are put in a cash box at night. The Police Department purchases their own receipt
books, and use of these receipt books are not in sequential order.
Effect:
Without control numbers for parking permits, there may be difficulties during the
reconciliation of issued parking permits to cash. Parking permits could be duplicated
and be issued and used without authorization. Also, cash is not properly safeguarded
and the lack of control over cash increases the risk of misappropriation of funds and
the Finance Department cannot determine if receipt books are missing since they do
not purchase or retain receipt books.
Recommendation:
We recommend the Police Department start using pre-numbered parking permits and
utilize a cash register to record and safeguard all cash receipts. Also, the Finance
Department should be the department responsible for purchasing and issuing receipt
books to all departments. The numerical sequence of the receipt books should be
logged and controlled by the Finance Department.
Management’s Response:
The Town Manager will recommend to the police department that pre numbered
parking permits are used, a cash register or an equivalent instrument be used, and that
pre numbered receipts are used in order and that all receipts are accounted for.

2012-04

Finding – No formal accounting policies manual
During our fieldwork, we noted that there is no formal accounting policies manual.
Effect:
Without a formal accounting policies manual, there is no authoritative guidance on
the treatment of accounting entries or transactions.
Recommendation:
We recommend that the Town adopt and implement an official accounting policies
manual.
Management’s Response:
Staff will work with the independent auditors to develop an accounting policies
manual.
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Other Matters (Continued)
2012-05

Finding – Payroll timesheets are completed prematurely
During our payroll test, we noted that payroll timesheets are completed early in the
pay period, resulting in numerous adjustments in the next pay period.
Effect:
Due to numerous adjustments to employee timesheets, there may be increased
difficulties encountered in the reconciliation of the timesheets, which may lead to an
increased risk of misappropriation of funds. Also, increased time and effort by
payroll personnel is incurred.
Recommendation:
We recommend that the payroll timesheets be completed and processed closer to the
pay period end date.
Management’s Response:
In order to comply with this recommendation, a change in pay dates would have to be
negotiated and agreed to through the collective bargaining process. Management has
attempted to make this change through the collective bargaining process and will
continue to pursue the possibility of making this change.

2012-06

Finding – GASB 54 policy does not state the designee who can make assignments
During our fieldwork, we noted that the GASB 54 policy does not state the designee
who can make assignments of fund balances.
Effect:
Without the GASB 54 policy stating who can make assignments, there is no guidance
on which individual can assign fund balances.
Recommendation:
We recommend that the Town’s GASB 54 policy be amended to state the designee
who can make assignments of fund balances.
Management’s Response:
Town staff will work with the independent auditors to revise the GASB 54 policy.

2012-07

Finding – Unused checks are not safeguarded
During our disbursements test, we noted that unused blank checks are not
safeguarded.
Effect:
Blank checks are not properly safeguarded and the lack of control over blank checks
increases the risk of misappropriation of funds.
Recommendation:
We recommend that the Town ensure proper safeguarding of unused blank checks by
keeping them in a locked and limited access area.
Management’s Response:
Upon being apprised of this matter, the Town asked the Accounting and Benefits
Technician to lock these checks in a secure location. Only the Accounting and
Benefits Technician has access to the checks.
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Other Matters (Continued)
2012-08

Finding – Lack of sign-off when cash deposits are received by the Finance
Department
During our fieldwork, we noted that there is no sign-off by the Finance Department
when cash receipt deposits are received from Recreation, Library, or Police.
Effect:
There is a lack of audit trail to confirm deposit amounts exchanging hands, which
could result in discrepancies and difficulties during cash reconciliation procedures.
Recommendation:
We recommend that these departments submit deposits and receipts to the Finance
Department during normal business hours.
Management’s Response:
Staff will work with the various departments to implement a procedure that will
comply with this recommendation.
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON AGREED-UPON
PROCEDURES APPLIED TO APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT WORKSHEETS
To the Town Council
Town of San Anselmo, California
We have applied the procedures enumerated below to the accompanying Appropriations Limit Worksheet
(or other alternative computation) of the Town of San Anselmo (Town) for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2013. These procedures, which were agreed to by the Town and the League of California Cities and
presented in their Article XIII-B Appropriations Limitation Uniform Guidelines, were performed solely to
assist you in meeting the requirements of Section 1.5 of Article XIIIB of the California Constitution (the
Gann Spending Limitation Initiative). The Town's management is responsible for the Appropriations
Limit Worksheet (or other alternative computation).
This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of these
procedures is solely the responsibility of those parties specified in this report. Consequently, we make no
representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for
which this report has been requested or any other purpose.
The procedures perfol1ned and our findings were as follows:
1. We obtained the completed Worksheets (or other alternative computation) used by the Town to
calculate its appropriations limit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013, and compared the limit
and annual adjustment factors included in those worksheets to the limit and annual adjustment
factors that were adopted by resolution of the Town Council. We also compared the population
and inflation options included in the aforementioned worksheets to those that were selected by a
recorded vote ofthe Town Council.

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.

2. For the accompanying Appropriations Limit Worksheet, we added prior year's limit to the total
ratio of change, and agreed the resulting amount to the current year's limit.
Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.
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To the Town Council
Town of San Anselmo, California
Page 2

3.

We compared the current year information presented in the accompanying Appropriations Limit
Worksheet to other worksheets used by the Town as described in No.1 above.

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.
4.

We compared the prior year appropriations limit presented in the accompanying Appropriations
Limit Worksheet to the prior year appropriations limit adopted by the Town Council for the prior
year.

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.
We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination, the objective of which would be the
expression of an opinion on the accompanying Appropriations Limit Worksheet (or other alternative
computation). Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Had we perfonned additional procedures,
other matters might have come to our attention that would have been repOlied to you. No procedures have
been performed with respect to the determination of the appropriation limit for the base year, as defined
by Article XIII -B of the California Constitution.
This repOIi is intended solely for the information and use of the Town Council and Town Management
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

MOSS, LEVY & HARTZHEIM, LLP
Culver City, California
November 21,2012
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TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
2012/2013
APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT CALCULATION

A.

20] ]/20]2 APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT (Prior year)

B.
C.

201212013 CALCULATION FACTORS:
CHANGE IN PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME:
CHANGE IN COUNTY POPULATION:

D.
E.

$

8,100,365

1.0377%
1.0105%

RATIO OF CHANGE

1.0485959

201212013 APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT

$

8,494,010

TOTAL FY 201212013 APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT
LESS: TOTAL SUBJECT TO APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT

$

8,494,010
7,843,147 .

AMOUNT UNDER THE APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT

$

650,863
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TOWN OF SAN ANSELMO
NOTES TO APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2013

1.

PURPOSE OF LIMITED PROCEDURES REVIEW
Under Article XIIIB of the California Constitution (the Gann Spending Limitation Initiative),
California governmental agencies are restricted as to the amount of annual appropriations from
proceeds of taxes. Effective for years beginning on or after July 1, 1990, under Section 1.5 of Article
XlII-B, the annual calculation of the appropriations limit is subject to a limited procedures review in
connection with the annual audit.

2.

METHOD OF CALCULATION
Under Section 10.5 of Article XIIIB, for fiscal years beginning on or after July, 1990, the
appropriations limit is required to be calculated based on the limit for the fiscal year 1986-87,
adjusted for the inflation and population factors discussed in Notes 3 and 4 below.

3. POPULATION FACTORS
A California governmental agency may adjust its appropriations limit by either the annual percentage
change of the jurisdiction's own population or the annual percentage change in population of the
County in which the Town is located. The factor adopted by the Town of San Anselmo for fiscal year
2012-13 represents the annual percentage change in population for the County of Marin of 1.05%.

4. INFLATION FACTORS
A California governmental agency may adjust its appropriations limit by either the annual percentage
change in the 4th quarter per capita personal income (which percentage is supplied by the State of
California Department of Finance) or the percentage change in the local assessment roll from the
preceding year due to the change of local nonresidential construction. The factor adopted by the
Town of San Anselmo for fiscal year 2012-13 represents the California per capita personal income
increase of3.77%.

5. OTHER ADJUSTMENTS
A California government agency may be required to adjust its appropriations limit when certain
events occur, such as the transfer of responsibility for municipal services to, or from, another
government agency or private entity. The Town of San Anselmo had no such adjustments for the
calculation for the fiscal year ending June 30, 20l3.
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